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OUR OBJECTIVE
To strengthen our presence in existing markets by giving quality
products and solutions to our customers. We intend to introduce
new products to meet the changing and expanding market
demands. The change in the market is an opportunity to grow;
we intend to penetrate other new markets and fields where our
expertise and products are in demand. We are geared to meet
new challenges and stay abreast with new technology for further
growth and expansion as well as to maintain our strength in our
present market.

OUR VISION
Our Goals:
to seek and provide innovative, dynamic, reliable and competitive
solutions to the entire aspect of the water cycle.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CORPORATE PROFILE

Listed in 2004 on the Singapore Exchange
Dealing and Automated Quotation System
(SGX-SESDAQ), the company PAN ASIAN
HOLDINGS LIMITED has grown to become
a leading supplier in the delivery of high
quality piping system solutions for water
infrastructure projects in the Asia Pacific
region. It had a humble beginning in 1979,
when founder Richard Koh started the
enterprise as a stockist and dealing in parts
such as piping and valves for the water, oil
and gas sectors.
Besides manufacturing its own brands, the
Company is today, exclusive agents for more
than 20 well-known international brands of
piping and related products from the US,
Japan, UK and Europe. In recent years,
Pan Asian Holdings has diversified into the
marine, oil and gas, as well as renewable
energy sectors due to an increasing trend of
growth in these industries.

In its effort to grow within the Asian region, the Company had also
made several new acquisitions and formed joint-venture companies
in China, Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand and Australia to establish a
strong network of sales operations in the region. The construction of
the Company’s main plant in the Tianjin Eco-city was delayed and the
plant is now expected to be completed by 2015. The objective of this
initiative is to develop a major manufacturing and logistic facility to
serve its evolving global needs and markets.
Over the years, the Company has grown from strength to strength
with the support of a large base of satisfied customers spanning
across Asia, Europe, Middle East and other parts of the world.
An overall staff strength of over 250 employees under a team of
experienced proactive and entrepreneurial managers, the Company
is poised for further success in many years to come and has always
aimed to become the preferred partner for local utility authorities and
private contractors.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

RICHARD KOH CHYE HENG
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
Pan Asian Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,
The financial year ended 31 December 2013 (FY2013) was an

Our joint ventures in Tianjin and Holland,

extremely difficult year for the Group. For the first time in our 33

which turned in weaker-than-expected

years of operating history, we incurred a loss of S$2.6 million on

performance, also contributed to the Group’s

the back of a 4.7% decline in revenue to S$48.2 million. This was

overall loss. The Tianjin operations were

partly due to a decision to take a short-term hit as we restructured

impacted by lower turnover amidst high

our Australian operations to set the right foundation for a more

operating costs, while a delay in materials

sustainable performance.

supply in Holland had held up our delivery
of finished valves to a customer.

In FY2013, we liquidated our Australian subsidiary, WD Moore,
which resulted in a write-off of over S$234,000. This move was

The good news is as at 28 February 2014,

necessary to protect the Group from high operating expenses

we have an order book of around S$17.3

incurred in Australia. Subsequent to the liquidation, we bought over

million, albeit some backlog orders. Our

selected assets of WD Moore and incorporated a wholly-owned

focus in FY2014 is on executing and

subsidiary with a similar business focus, supplying windmill and

delivering these orders smoothly, while

solar powered water pumping systems in Australia. It is important to

keeping a tight watch on costs, so as to

continue with our presence down under because we hold the view

turn the Group around as soon as we can.

that Australia offers a ready network of customers and cross-selling
opportunities for us. For cost savings, manufacturing will be carried
out at our plants in China.
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The Way Forward

To increase our value-add, we are

Overall, the Group has a sound

moving towards providing total

business

To drive sales volume, we will push

piping solutions by looking into

infrastructure in place to tap the

ahead with our prudent market

our customer requirements and

opportunities in our key markets,

expansion strategy. In FY2013, we

packaging the right products to

especially in Singapore and Malaysia

extended our presence in Thailand

deliver efficient piping systems.

where the government is spending

and the UK via joint ventures with

Not only will this strategic shift

more

local partners, focusing on trading,

better meet the unique needs of

projects. To leverage these growth

marketing and distribution. Where

our customers, it will also set the

drivers, we need to beef up human

feasible, we will continue the

Group apart from the competition.

capital and hone our engineering, as

practice of working with partners

on

foundation

public

and

infrastructure

well as application and development

that have strong local knowledge to

Looking

facilitate our entry into the market.

environment

ahead,
is

our

operating

expected

capabilities. This will enable the

to

Group to develop more effective

remain challenging and intensely

piping solutions that address the

We will also expand the depth and

competitive. While we focus on our

changing market needs. Significant

breadth of our service offerings,

core business and pursue expansion,

resources will be invested in our

leaning

value

it is imperative for the Group to

human resource programmes to

product segments that yield better

remain nimble so as to better

attract the right talents and upgrade

margins. Good headway has been

navigate through choppy waters.

the skill sets of our staff.

made to develop our own range

Our operations will constantly be

of eco-technology products, with

assessed against risk exposure and

successful pilot studies carried out

various performance indicators.

in various countries. The Group

Where necessary, changes such as

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

looks forward to introducing these

restructuring, relocation or tweaks in

I would like to thank our business

cost-efficient products, which utilise

business plans will be carried out to

partners for their continued support.

natural energy sources including

protect and strengthen the Group’s

I would also like to thank all our

wind and solar, to our customers.

financial position.

staff for their commitment and hard

towards

higher

Words of appreciation

work. To our valued shareholders,
thank you for your trust in us. Rest
assured that we are working hard to
turn the Group around. I seek your
patience and continued support.
Richard Koh Chye Heng
Executive Chairman
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SUPPORTING
THE ENTIRE
WATER
CYCLE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RICHARD KOH CHYE HENG
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
Appointed as the Executive Chairman from
20 March 2009, Mr Koh is responsible for
the overall management of the Group’s
operations, as well as the formulating
and implementing the Group’s business
strategies. As the founder and managing
director of the Company from 1980 to 1991,
Mr Koh was its chairman from 1991 to 2004.
He resigned as a director in 2004 to pursue
other business interests. From 2004 to March
2009, Mr Koh developed and managed a
valve manufacturing business in the PRC,
Duvalco Valves (Wuxi) Co., Ltd, where he is
the director.

KOH EDDIE
MANAGING DIRECTOR & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Koh was appointed as the Company’s Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer on 29 May 2009.
He is responsible for the overall performance of the
Group. Mr. Koh has extensive experience in the Group’s
operations and products. Mr. Koh joined the Group in
1991 as the Regional Sales manager. Over the period
of 20 years, Mr Koh has held various key positions in
the Group and has been instrumental in its regional
expansion. Mr. Koh holds a Bachelor of Engineering
from National University of Singapore.
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GOH BOON KOK
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Appointed as an Independent Director on 20 March 2009 and as a Lead
Independent Director on 27 February 2014. A chartered accountant, Mr Goh is
the principal of Goh Boon Kok & Co, an accounting firm established in Singapore
since 1974. Prior to that, Mr Goh had more than 10 years of experience in
both public and private sectors, including the Inland Revenue Authority of
Singapore, Economic Development Board, a locally listed shipyard and USAbased multinational pharmaceutical company. He is a fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, UK, and associate of the Chartered
Institute of Secretaries and Administrators, UK. Mr Goh is also an independent
director of several companies listed on the SGX-ST, including Super Coffeemix
Manufacturing Limited, Magnus Energy Group Ltd, GDS Global Ltd and Adroit
Innovations Limited.

WU YU LIANG
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointed as an Independent Director on 20 March
2009. An advocate and solicitor for the last 28 years,
Mr Wu is currently the managing director of Wu
LLC, a law corporation in Singapore. He advises
on corporate and commercial laws in addition to
litigation work. He is also an independent director
of Jiutian Chemical Group Limited and China
Environment Ltd., companies listed on the SGX-ST.

INDRIATI KHOE
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 29 May 2009. Madam
Khoe is the Finance Manager of Duvalco International Pte Ltd
and Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd, the majority shareholder to Pan
Asian Water Solution Pan Asian Water Solutions Ltd. She is also a
director of VIP-Polymers Pte Ltd. Madam Khoe holds a Bachelor
of Business (Finance & Economics) degree from Curtin University
of Technology in Australia & a Diploma in Business Studies
(Accountancy) and has over 20 years of financial management
experience in the region.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM
EE KENG BOON DONALD
GROUP EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (NON – BOARD MEMBER)
Joined in May 2010 as Personal Advisor to the Executive Chairman,
Dr Donald Ee took on the new role of Group Executive Director in
March 2012. Bringing with him considerable management and business
experience, he provides leadership to the management team and dayto-day operations that would assist the company in its next level of
growth.
Prior to joining the company, Donald spent five years teaching at the
Business School (post-graduate) of the University of Western Australia,
and had also been a management consultant to several companies
in the past. He was conferred the Pingat Bakti Masharakat (PBM) by
the President of the Republic of Singapore in the 1997 National Day
Honours List.

TEO KOK MENG
GROUP FINANCIAL CONTROLLER
Mr. Teo was appointed to the position of Group Financial Controller
on 27 January 2014. He is responsible for all financial, administrative
and information technology matters for the Group. He has over 12
years of working experience in accounting and financial management in
various public listed companies. Mr. Teo is both a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a non-practising
member of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.

KELLY KOH MEE LIN
MARKETING DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
Ms. Koh was appointed to the position of Marketing Development
Director in March 2013. She is responsible for the promotion and sales
activities of core products of the Company into new markets.
She graduated from Seattle University with a degree in International
Business and had spent more than 10 years in regional sales and
marketing for two large corporations.
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CHEE BENG CHOON, DOUGLAS
GENERAL MANAGER (TECHNICAL / MARKETING)
Mr. Chee is responsible for the overall technical marketing and business development
functions of the company, focusing primarily in the marketing and promotion of its line of
products and services to the water purification, wastewater treatment plant system providers
and public utilities boards. Mr. Chee oversees the maintenance of good rapport and regular
contact with customers and principals, through regular product updates and sharing of best
practices in the piping systems, process designs and installation technologies. He holds a
Diploma in Management Studies and Electronics and Communications from the Singapore
Institute of Management and Singapore Polytechnic respectively and has more than 17
years of experience in the industry.

TAN KOK CHENG
GENERAL MANAGER (PRODUCTS)
Mr. Tan is responsible for the company’s domestic sales of pipes, valves and fittings
products focusing in the water and waste-water segments. He has developed a close
network of customers for the company during his 29 years of service. Mr. Tan currently
heads a team of sales engineers and is always keen to source for new product lines that will
enhance the services provided and satisfy the needs of its current customers.

TEO YEW LEONG, ERIC
REGIONAL SALES MANAGER (DUVALCO VALVES & FITTINGS PTE LTD)
Mr. Teo is responsible for the sales and marketing of the Duvalco brand of valves and
fittings, focusing on the domestic water and waste-water businesses. He has more than 20
years of experience in the building and construction sector and has been placed with the
responsibility to ensure that the subsidiary’s business will grow from strength to strength.
Mr. Teo holds a Diploma in Sales and Marketing from the Marketing Institute of Singapore.

KWAN KOON HO, HARVEY
GENERAL MANAGER (PAN ASIAN WATER SOLUTIONS (HK) LIMITED)
Mr. Kwan is responsible for the subsidiary’s overall sales, marketing and business
developments, primarily in the marketing and promotion of our products and services
to Hong Kong W.S.D., D.S.D., consultants and contractors. Mr. Kwan’s responsibilities
include regular updates of product information to customers, ensuring prompt deliveries
to customers and monitoring of stock ordering. Mr. Kwan holds a Diploma in Mechanical
Engineering awarded by Seneca College, Toronto, Canada and has more than 10 years of
experience in the industry.

11

PAN ASIAN
HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

GROUP STRUCTURE

Pan Asian Holdings Limited
HELD UNDER
PAHL

REPRESENTATIVE
OFFICE

PA Corporation
(M) Sdn Bhd

PA Tech (Asia)
Pte Ltd

DVC Valves (M)
Sdn Bhd

Pan Asian
Holdings
Limited
(Vietnam)

100%

100%

76%

51%

PA Airwater
Pte Ltd

Pan Asian HB
Pte Ltd

W.D. Moore
(Asia) Pte Ltd

W.D. Moore
Pty Ltd

100%

80%*
PA PTE
(Thailand)
Company
Limited

100%
W.D. Moore
(2013) Pty Ltd

60%

51%
PT Pan Asian
Water Solutions

100%
Pan Asian Water
Solutions (HK)
Limited

100%

100%

Pan Asian Manufacturing (Tianjin) Co Ltd

Duvalco Valves
& Fittings Pte
Ltd

60%
Duvalco Valves
(Tianjin) Co Ltd

100%
Shanghai Ji Xin
Flow Control
Co Ltd
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70%

JV UNDER
PAHL
50%

50%

Franklin Hodge

S-Two (Asia)
Pte Ltd

(Asia) Pte Ltd

49%
Duvalco Controls Co Ltd
(Thailand)

100%

55%

PA Water
Solutions
(Shanghai)
Limited

Pan Asian (Tianjin)
Industrial and
Trading Co Ltd

60%

100%

PVT Engineering
Sdn Bhd

GLS Tank Sdn
Bhd

100%

50%

Duvalco BV

Duvalco UK Ltd

HELD UNDER
SUBSIDIARY

JV UNDER
SUBSIDIARY
*

effective interest.
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GROUP STRUCTURE

HEAD OFFICE:
PAN ASIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
No. 2, Tractor Road
Singapore 627966
Tel : 65-6268 7227
Fax : 65-6268 3679
E-mail : enquiry@pawater.com.sg
SUBSIDIARIES
DUVALCO VALVES & FITTINGS PTE. LTD.
PA TECH (ASIA) PTE. LTD.
W. D. MOORE (ASIA) PTE LTD
No. 2, Tractor Road
Singapore 627966
Tel : 65-6265 8128
Fax : 65-6265 8028
E-mail : enquiry@duvalco.net
PAN ASIAN
HB PTE LTD
No. 2, Tractor Road
Singapore 627966
Tel : 65-6268 7227
Fax : 65-6268 9679
E-mail : enquiry@pawatertech.com
PAN ASIAN WATER SOLUTIONS (HK)
LIMITED
Rm 1707 17/F Multifield Plaza
3-7A Prat Avenue, TST Kowloon
Tel : 852-2376 2992
Fax : 852-2376 2662
E-mail : pamhk@netvigator.com
DVC VALVES (M) SDN BHD
PA CORPORATION (M) SDN BHD
D-3A-47 Block Dahlia, 10 Boulevard,
Lebuhraya SPRINT, PJU 6A,
47400 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
Tel : 60-3 7722 1619
Fax : 60-3 7722 1029
PA WATER SOLUTIONS (SHANGHAI)
LIMITED
Unit No.: #11-04 Super Ocean Finance
Center Building,
2067 Yan An Road (West),
Shanghai 200335, PR China
Tel : 86-21 6295 1208
Fax : 86-21 6295 1308
E-mail : enquiry@pawater.com.cn
PT PAN ASIAN WATER SOLUTIONS
Granha Prima Building 3rd floor
Jln. Cideng Barat No. 79
Jakarta Pusat 10150, Indonesia
Tel : 62-21-3450049
Fax : 62-21-3450051
E-mail : enquiry@pawater.com.sg

PVT ENGINEERING SDN BHD
GLS TANK SDN BHD(4)
D-5-58 Block Dahlia, 10 Boulevard,
Lebuhraya SPRINT, PJU 6A,
47400 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
Tel : 60-3 7806 1415
Fax : 60-3 7725 7795

PAN ASIAN (TIANJIN) INDUSTRIAL AND
TRADING CO. LTD(3)
Unit No.: #11-04 Super Ocean Finance
Center Building, 2067 Yan An Road
(West), Shanghai 200335, PR China
Tel : 86-21 6295 1208
Fax : 86-21 6295 1308
E-mail : enquiry@pawater.com.cn

PAN ASIAN MANUFACTURING
(TIANJIN) CO LTD
Unit No.: #11-04 Super Ocean Finance
Center Building,
2067 Yan An Road (West),
Shanghai 200335, PR China
Tel : 86-21 6295 1208
Fax : 86-21 6295 1308
E-mail : enquiry@pawater.com.cn

JOINT VENTURES
FRANKLIN HODGE (ASIA) PTE LTD
S-TWO (ASIA) PTE LTD
No. 2, Tractor Road.
Singapore 627966
Tel : 65-6268 7227
Fax : 65-6268 9679
E-mail : enquiry@franklinhodge.com.sg

DUVALCO BV
Zernikestraat 25, 3316 BZ Dordrecht,
The Netherlands
Tel : 31-(0) 78 6 54 52 50
Fax : 31-(0) 78 6 54 52 60
E-mail : enquiry@duvalco.net
PA AIRWATER PTE LTD
No. 2, Tractor Road.
Singapore 627966
Tel : 65-6268 7227
Fax : 65-6268 9679
E-mail : enquiry@pawater.com.sg
PA PTE (THAILAND) COMPANY LIMITED
5 Sithvorakit Bld 10FL,
Room 108 Soi Phiphat,
Silom Road, Silom
Tel : 66-2 636 6021
W. D MOORE (2013) PTY LTD
WA 6106, Welshpool
51240 Star Street
Tel : 61-8 9355 1133
Fax : 61-8 9355 0944
E-mail : mail@wdmoore.com.au
HELD THROUGH A SUBSIDIARY
DUVALCO VALVES (TIANJIN) CO. LTD(1)
Unit No.: #11-04 Super Ocean Finance
Center Building,
2067 Yan An Road (West),
Shanghai 200335, PR China
Tel : 86-21 6295 1208
Fax : 86-21 6295 1308
E-mail : enquiry@pawater.com.cn
SHANGHAI JI XIN FLOW CONTROL
CO. LTD(2)
Unit No.: #11-04 Super Ocean Finance
Center Building,
2067 Yan An Road (West),
Shanghai 200335, PR China
Tel : 86-21 6295 1208
Fax : 86-21 6295 1308
E-mail : enquiry@pawater.com.cn

DUVALCO CONTROLS CO LTD
(THAILAND)
Phayathai Plaza Building, 9th Floor,
No. 128/110, Phayathai Road,
Kwaeng Thung Phayathia,
Khet Ratchathewi, Bangkok 10400
Tel : 66-2612 1001
Fax : 66-2612 1003
E-mail : enquiry@pawater.com.sg
DUVALCO UK LTD
15 Windover Road, Huntingdon,
Cambridgeshire, PE29 7EB, UK
Tel : 440-1480 411 333
Fax : 440-1480 413 991
REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE
PAN ASIAN WATER SOLUTIONS
LIMITED (VIETNAM)
115 Phan Xich Long, Ward 7,
District Phu Nhuan,
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
Tel : 848-5177343
Fax : 848-817 4375
E-mail : panasian.vietnam@hcm.vnn.vn

Note
(1) Duvalco Valves (Tianjin) Co. Ltd is held by
Duvalco Valves & Fittings Pte Ltd
(2) Shanghai Ji Xin Flow Control Co. Ltd is
held by Duvalco Valves (Tianjin) Co Ltd
(3) Pan Asian (Tianjin) Industrial and Trading
Co. Ltd is held by PA Water Solutions
(Shanghai) Limited
(4) GLS Sdn Bhd is held by PVT Engineering
Sdn Bhd.
(5) Duvalco BV is held by Duvalco Valves &
Fittings Pte Ltd
(6) Duvalco UK Ltd is held by Duvalco Valves
& Fittings Pte Ltd.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

In the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Group witnessed
lower sales in Vietnam, Malaysia, Cambodia and Australia and this
resulted in a 4.7% dip in overall revenue to S$48.2 million. The
progress of our water works projects in Vietnam did not advance
at a pace that we had expected. The Group also completed fewer
NeWater and wastewater projects during the year. Together with
weaker sales recorded in higher margin product segments, gross
profit declined 16.6% to S$9.6 million, while gross profit margin
slipped 3 percentage points to 20%.
Marketing and distribution costs increased 8.2% to S$6.0 million as
set up costs were incurred for our new business units in Singapore
and Thailand. Higher headcount costs were also recorded in
Singapore, Malaysia and Holland due to expanded staff strength as
we gear ourselves for more projects anticipated in these countries.
Administrative expenses, on the other hand, declined 2.5% to S$5.5
million as we liquidated our Australian subsidiary, WD Moore, during
the year under review.
Coupled with a decrease in other income, higher allowance for trade
receivables impairment, as well as the loss on disposal of plant and
equipment in Australia, the Group recorded a loss of S$2.6 million
in FY2013.
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Segmental and geographical performance

of Brunei to S$5.9 million, up from S$0.2
million in FY2012. Brunei generated 12.2%

The Valves segment, which represented 38.3% of total Group

of Group revenue. A 73.9% improvement

revenue, witnessed 54.9% jump in revenue to S$18.5 million due to

in revenue was recorded in China, whose

increased focus on our valve business. Lower sales were recorded

sales of S$5.3 million constituted 11.1% of

for the remaining four segments. Potable water, the second largest

total revenue.

business segment which contributed 35.7% of total sales, saw
a marginal 2.2% drop in revenue to S$17.2 million due to lower

As a result of the country’s economic

demand in Singapore, Vietnam and Cambodia. Sales from the Waste

slowdown and lower demand for potable

water and NeWater segments, each accounting for 2.0% of Group

water, Vietnam recorded the largest decline

revenue, declined 48.6% and 66.9% respectively to S$930,000 and

of 58.2% to S$2.8 million. Our performance

S$928,000 as fewer projects were completed in FY2013. Revenue

in Malaysia was impacted by project delays,

from Others segment also dipped 35.1% to S$10.7 million due to

while sales in Australia were impacted by

projects delay in Malaysia and restructuring exercise in Australia.

the restructuring exercise. Accordingly,
revenue from Malaysia and Australia, which

Geographically, despite a 6.2% decline in revenue to S$13.1

represented 13.8% and 3.4% of total sales

million, Singapore continued to be the largest revenue contributor,

respectively, dropped 34.4% and 47.9%

generating 27.2% of total sales. Due to new project wins as we

to S$6.7 million and S$1.6 million. Hong

stepped up sales and marketing efforts, higher sales were recorded

Kong and Indonesia also registered a 15.0%

in Brunei, Europe and China. In FY2013, Europe was the second

and 53.1% slide in revenue respectively

largest revenue contributor, turning in S$6.7 million in sales, 68.8%

to S$1.7 million and S$0.7 million as more

higher than last year. The new projects attained had pushed sales

projects were completed in the preceding
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year. Revenue from our project in

receivables. The higher current

Cambodia was fully recognised in

assets were partially offset by a

FY2012 and accordingly, no sales

$0.8 million decline in non-current

were recorded in FY2013.

assets due to depreciation of plant
and equipment.

Balance sheet and cash position
Cash and cash equivalents were
As at 31 December 2013, total

higher at S$3.9 million, from S$3.1

assets stood at S$49.0 million, up

million last year, due to an increase

from S$45.7 million in FY2012. This

in bank borrowings amounting to

was due to a S$4.1 million increase

S$6.4 million and the S$2.1 million

in current assets, comprising a $0.8

proceeds from the issuance of

million increase in prepayment of

shares.

goods, S$1.0 million improvement
in cash and cash, a $0.7 million
increase in inventories, as well as a
$1.6 million jump in trade and other
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The Board of Directors and Management of Pan Asian Holdings Limited Group (the “Company”) are committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance to facilitate effective management and safeguard the interests
of the Company’s shareholders.
This Corporate Governance Report lists out the corporate governance processes and structures of the Group,
with specific reference to the principles and guidelines of the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance 2012
(the “Code”), and where applicable, the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) Listing Manual
Section B: Rules of Catalist (the “Catalist Rules”).
The Company confirms that it has adhered to these principles and guidelines set out in the Code, where applicable,
and has identified and explained areas of non-compliance in this report.
BOARD MATTERS
Principle 1: The Board’s Conduct of Affairs
Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the company. The Board is
collectively responsible for the long-term success of the company. The Board works with Management to
achieve this objective and Management remains accountable to the Board.
The Board comprises five directors, three of whom are Non-Executive Directors. The composition of the Board is
as follows:
Richard Koh Chye Heng

Executive Chairman

Koh Eddie

Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer

Goh Boon Kok

Lead Independent Director

Wu Yu Liang

Independent Director

Indriati Khoe

Non-Executive Director

The Board’s principal responsibilities are:
(a)

to guide the formulation of the Group’s overall long-term strategic objectives and directions. This includes
setting the Group’s policies and strategic plans and monitoring the achievement of these corporate
objectives;

(b)

to establish goals for management and monitor the achievement of these goals;

(c)

to ensure management leadership’s high quality, effectiveness and integrity; and

(d)

to review internal controls, risk management, financial performance and reporting compliance.
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The Board has delegated certain functions to its key board committees, namely Audit Committee, Nominating
Committee and Remuneration Committee, save for the following matters which are reserved for the Board’s
decision:
(a)

the corporate strategy;

(b)

the making of any decision to cease, to operate all or any material part of the business of the Group or to
extend the Group’s activities into new business;

(c)

the approval of any material acquisition or disposal of any investment, asset or business by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries;

(d)

the approval of any changes relating to the Company’s capital structure, including share issues and reduction
of capital;

(e)

the approval of the Company’s financial results and audited financial statements;

(f)

the recommendation of the payment of any dividend by the Company;

(g)

the appointment or removal of director from the Board;

(h)

the appointment or removal of the Company Secretary;

(i)

the remuneration packages for key executives of the Company;

(j)

the convene of shareholders’ meetings; and

(k)

any matter required to be considered or approved by the Board as a matter of law or regulation.

The Company’s Articles of Association allows a Board meeting to be conducted by way of telephone or video
conference. The Board conducts scheduled meetings at least four times a year and ad-hoc meetings will be
convened as and when they are deemed necessary. At the meetings of the Board, all Directors are free to speak
and openly challenge the views presented by Management and other Directors. The Board had also on various
occasions used written resolutions by circulation to sanction certain decisions.
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The number of Board and Board Committee meetings held during the financial year ended 31 December 2013 and
the attendance of each Director are as follows:

Name
Richard Koh Chye Heng
Koh Eddie
Goh Boon Kok
Wu Yu Liang
Indriati Khoe

Board

Audit
Committee

Nominating
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

No. of
Meetings
held: 4

No. of
Meetings
held: 4

No. of
Meeting
held: 1

No. of
Meeting
held: 1

NA
NA
4
4
4

NA
NA
1
1
0

NA
NA
1
1
0

4
3
4
4
4

Note:
NA – Not applicable

The Directors’ academic and professional qualifications are set out on pages 8 to 9 of this Annual Report.
The Company will provide a formal letter to newly appointed Directors upon their appointment setting out their
statutory duties and responsibilities as Directors. All new and existing Directors are provided with background
information about the Group’s history and core values, its strategic direction and corporate governance practices
as well as industry specific knowledge.
Board members are encouraged to attend seminars and trainings to enhance their knowledge for them to discharge
their duties and responsibilities. The Company works closely with sponsor, auditors, company secretary and other
professionals to provide Directors with information relating to changes in relevant laws, listing manuals, regulations
and accounting standards.
Principle 2: Board Composition and Balance
There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise objective
judgement on corporate affairs independently, in particular, from Management and 10% shareholders. No
individual or small group of individuals should be allowed to dominate the Board’s decision making.
The Company endeavours to maintain a strong and independent element on the Board. The Board comprises of
two (2) Executive Directors, one (1) Non-Executive Director and two (2) Independent Directors. The criterion of
independence is based on the definition given in the Code. The Independent Directors have confirmed that they
do not have any relationship with the Company, its related companies its 10% shareholders or its officers that
could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the Director’s independent business
judgement with a view to the best interests of the Group.

19

PAN ASIAN
HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
The independence of the Independent Directors, namely Mr. Goh Boon Kok and Mr. Wu Yu Liang are reviewed
annually by the Nominating Committee, in accordance with the Code’s definition of independence. Each Director
is required to complete a ‘Confirmation of Independence of Director’ form to confirm his independence. The said
form, which was drawn up based on the definitions and guidelines set forth in Guideline 2.3 of the Code and the
Guidebook for Audit Committees in Singapore issued by Audit Committee Guidance Committee, requires each
Director to assess whether he considers himself independent despite not having any of the relationships defined in
the Code. The Nominating Committee has reviewed the forms completed by each Director and is satisfied that the
Independent Directors of the Company are independent and further, that no individual or small group of individuals
dominate the Board’s decision making process.
There is no independent director who has been appointed for more than nine years from the date of his first
appointment.
The Board is of the opinion that its current size and composition is appropriate for decision making, taking into
account the scope and nature of the Group’s operations. The Board members provide a range of core competencies
in accounting, finance, legal, business management experience and expertise and industry knowledge that provide
effective direction for the Group.
The Independent Directors provide, amongst others, strategic guidance to the Company based on their professional
knowledge, in particular, assisting to constructively develop proposals on strategy. The Independent Directors also
help to review the performance of the management in meeting goals and objectives and monitor the reporting of
performance. To facilitate a more effective check on the Management, the Independent Directors will arrange for
meetings without the presence of the Management as and when required.
The Board acknowledges that the independent directors should make up at least half of the Board as the Executive
Chairman and the Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer of the Company are immediate family members
and will adhere to the requirement of the Code on or before the financial year ending 31 December 2017.
Principle 3: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the Board and the executives
responsible for managing the company’s business. No one individual should represent a considerable
concentration of power.
The Code states that the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should in principle be separated to
ensure an appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and greater capacity of the Board for independent
decision making.
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are undertaken by separate persons so as
to create a clear division of responsibilities.

20

PAN ASIAN
HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Mr Richard Koh Chye Heng, founder and Executive Chairman of the Company, is to develop the business, formulate
and implement the business strategies of the Group.
Mr Koh Eddie, Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the son of the Executive Chairman,
will be responsible for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group. Notwithstanding such relationship,
there is no concentration of power as the Group is run objectively on a transparent basis as the Board feels that
there is adequate representation of independent and Non-Executive Directors on the Board.
Mr Goh Boon Kok has been appointed as the Lead Independent Director of the Company and is available to
shareholders should they have concerns which cannot be resolved through the normal channel of the Chairman or
for which such contact is inappropriate. The lead independent director will meet the independent directors of the
Company without presence of the other directors, as and when required. A feedback will be given to the Chairman
after such meetings.
The Executive Chairman, guided by recommendations provided by the Chairman of the respective committees,
Group Financial Controller and the Company Secretary is responsible for, among others, to:
(a)
(b)

lead the Board to ensure its effectiveness on all aspects of its role;
set the agenda and ensure that adequate time is available for discussion of all agenda items, in particular
strategic issues;

(c)

promote a culture of openness and debate at the Board;

(d)

ensure that the directors receive complete, adequate and timely information;

(e)

ensure effective communication with its shareholders;

(f)

encourage constructive relations within the Board and between the Board and Management;

(g)

facilitate effective contribution of non-executive directors in particular; and

(h)

promote high standards of corporate governance and assist in ensuring compliance of the Company’s
guidelines on corporate governance.

The Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer is the most senior executive in the Company and has full
executive responsibilities over the operations for the Group.
Both the Executive Chairman and Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer exercise control over quality,
quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between Management and the Board.

21

PAN ASIAN
HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Principle 4: Board Membership
There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment and re-appointment of Directors to
the Board.
All the Nominating Committee members are Non-Executive Directors, the majority of whom are independent
directors. The Nominating Committee members are:
Wu Yu Liang

Chairman and Independent Director

Goh Boon Kok
Indriati Khoe

Lead Independent Director
Non-Executive Director

The Nominating Committee is established for the purposes of ensuring that there is a formal and transparent process
for all board appointments. It has adopted written terms of reference defining its membership, administration and
duties.
The duties and responsibilities of the Nominating Committee are as follows:
(a)

To determine the criteria for the appointment of new Directors;

(b)

To set up a process for the selection of such appointment;

(c)

To review nominations for the appointment of Directors to the Board;

(d)

To make recommendations to the Board on all board appointments;

(e)

To re-nominate Directors having regard to the director’s contribution and performance;

(f)

To determine annually whether or not a Director is independent; and

(g)

To make recommendation to the Board the performance criteria and appraisal process to be used for the
evaluation of the individual Directors as well as the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, which criteria
and process shall be subject to Board’s approval.

The process for the shortlisting, selection and appointment of all new directors is spearheaded by the Nominating
Committee. Interviews are set up with potential candidates so that the Nominating Committee is able to assess
each prospective candidate before a decision is made for recommendation to the Board for final approval.
The independence of each Independent Director is reviewed annually by the Nominating Committee based on the
Code’s definition of what constitutes an Independent Director.
The Nominating Committee decides how the Board’s performance is to be evaluated and proposes objective
performance criteria, subject to the approval of the Board, which addresses how the Board has enhanced long-term
shareholders value.
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The Nominating Committee is of the view that despite some of the Directors having multiple board representations,
the Nominating Committee is satisfied that these Directors are able to and have adequately carried out their duties
as Directors of the Company. As time requirement of each director are subjective, the Nominating Committee has
decided not to fix a maximum limit on the number of directorship a director can hold. The Board has experienced
minimal competing time commitments among its members as Board meetings are planned and scheduled well in
advance of the meeting dates.
The Articles of Association of the Company states that one-third of the Directors have to retire and subject
themselves for re-election by the shareholders at every annual general meeting. In addition, all Directors of the
Company shall retire from office at least once every three years.
Mr Wu Yu Liang is subject to retirement at the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to the Articles
of Association of the Company. Mr Goh Boon Kok, who is over the age of 70 years, will have to retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to Section 153 (2) of the Companies Act, Cap. 50.
Accordingly, the Nominating Committee has assessed and recommended and the Board has endorsed the
re-election of Mr Wu Yu Liang and re-appointment of Mr Goh Boon Kok, who have offered themselves for
re-election/re-appointment, by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The key information of the Directors as at the date of this report is set out below:
Date of Initial
Appointment as
Director/Date of
Last Re-election/
Name of Directors

Re-appointment

Directorship in Other Listed Companies

as Director

and Other Principal Commitments
Current

Richard Koh Chye Heng

26 May 2008/

(Executive Chairman)

30 April 2012

Koh Eddie (Managing Director
cum Chief Executive Officer)
Goh Boon Kok
(Lead Independent Director)

Past 3 Years

–

–

–

–

20 March 2009/

Super Coffeemix

–

30 April 2013

Manufacturing Limited

1 December 1989/
30 April 2013

Magnus Energy Group Ltd
Adroit Innovations Limited
GDS Global Ltd
Wu Yu Liang
(Independent Director)

20 March 2009/

Jiutian Chemical Group Limited

See Hup

29 April 2011

Wu LLC

Seng Limited

China Environment Ltd
Indriati Khoe
(Non-Executive Director)

29 May 2009/
30 April 2013

–

–
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Principle 5: Board Performance
There should be a formal annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and its board
committees and the contribution by each Director to the effectiveness of the Board.
The Nominating Committee has established an appraisal process to assess the performance and effectiveness of the
Board (including Board Committees) as a whole as well as the contribution of individual Directors. It focuses on a set
of criteria which include the evaluation of the size and composition of the Board, the Board’s access to information,
Board process and accountability, Board performance in relation to discharging its principal responsibilities and the
Directors’ standard of conducts.
The Nominating Committee reviews and determines the independence of each Director and assesses the
effectiveness of the Board as a whole and of individual Directors. The Nominating Committee has reviewed and
assessed the effectiveness of the Board (including Board Committee) based on the criteria approved by the Board.
The Nominating Committee is of the opinion that each member of the Board had been effective during the year
2013 having regard to the active participation of each Board member during each Board and Committee meeting.
Principle 6: Access to Information
In order to fulfill their responsibilities, Directors should be provided with complete, adequate and timely
information prior to Board meetings and on an on-going basis so as to enable them to make informed
decisions to discharge their duties and responsibilities.
The Board is furnished with Board papers prior to a Board meeting. These papers are issued in sufficient time
to enable the Directors to obtain additional information or explanations from the Management, if necessary. The
Board papers include minutes of the previous meeting, reports relating to investment proposals, budgets, financial
results announcements, and reports from various committees, internal and external auditors.
The independent and Non-Executive Directors are always available to provide guidance to the Management on
business issues and in areas which they specialise in. The directors also have direct access to the Management,
sponsor and the company secretary.
The Directors may communicate directly with the Management and the company secretary on all matters whenever
they deem necessary, to ensure adherence to the Board procedures and relevant rules and regulations which
are applicable to the Company. The company secretary attends all Board Meetings and Board Committees and is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed.
The Company currently does not have a formal procedure for Directors to seek independent and professional advice
in the furtherance of their duties. However, Directors may, on a case-to-case basis, propose to the Board for such
independent and professional advice, at the Company’s expense.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS
Principle 7: Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive remuneration and
for fixing the remuneration packages of individual Directors. No Director should be involved in deciding his
own remuneration.
Principle 8: Level of Mix of Remuneration
The level and structure of remuneration should be aligned with the long-term interest and risk policies of
the company and should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate (a) the directors to provide good
stewardship of the Company, and (b) key management personnel to successfully manage the company.
However, companies should avoid paying more than is necessary for this purpose.
The Remuneration Committee is established for the purposes of ensuring that there is a formal and transparent
procedure for fixing the remuneration packages of individual Directors. The overriding principle is that no Director
should be involved in deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has adopted written terms of
reference that defines its membership, roles and functions and administration.
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following members:
Wu Yu Liang

Chairman and Independent Director

Goh Boon Kok

Lead Independent Director

Indriati Khoe

Non-executive Director

All Remuneration Committee members are Non-Executive Directors, majority of whom are independent of
management. The Remuneration Committee has experience in the field of executive compensation. The
Remuneration Committee may seek professional advice where necessary.
The duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
(a)

To advise the Board on the framework of remuneration policies for the directors and key executives;

(b)

To review and recommend to the Board in consultation with senior Management a framework of remuneration
for Executive Directors, Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer and key executives;

(c)

To review the remuneration packages of all managerial staff, if any, that are related to any of the executive
Directors or Chief Executive Officer; and

(d)

To recommend to the Board in consultation with senior Management and the Chairman of the Board, the
Executives’ and other Employees’ incentive schemes.
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In setting remuneration packages, the Remuneration Committee will take into account the performance of the Group
as well as the Directors and key executives aligning their interests with those of shareholders and linking rewards to
corporate and individual performance as well as industry benchmarks. The review of remuneration packages takes
into consideration the longer term interests of the Group. The review covers all aspects of remuneration including
salaries, fees, allowances, bonuses, options and benefits-in-kind. The Committee’s recommendations are made
in consultation with the Executive Chairman of the Board and submitted for endorsement by the entire Board. No
Director shall participate in decisions on his own remuneration. The payment of Directors’ fees is subject to the
approval of shareholders. The Remuneration Committee’s role also includes the review of Executive Directors and
key executives’ contracts during termination, to ensure that such contracts of services contain for and reasonable
termination clauses.
No independent consultant is engaged for advising on the remuneration of all directors. However, in discharging
its functions, the Remuneration Committee may obtain independent external professional advice as it deems
necessary, at the Company’s expenses.
The Remuneration Committee reviews the remuneration of all Directors and key executives and approves
recommendations on remuneration policies and packages for such persons. The review covers all aspects of
remuneration including but not limited to Directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, options and benefits-in-kind.
The remuneration of Executive Chairman, Mr Richard Koh Chye Heng is based on Service Agreement dated 20
March 2009 and supplemental letter dated 3 April 2012. The Service Agreement has been renewed for another
three (3) years with effect from 20 March 2012.
The remuneration of Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer, Mr Koh Eddie is based on Service Agreement
dated 2 April 2012. The service agreement is renewable on a yearly basis and had been renewed for another one
(1) year from 2 April 2013.
The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is in the form of a fixed fee which is fixed after taking into
consideration factors such as effort, time spent and responsibilities of the directors. Non-Executive Directors’ fees
are subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting.
Annual reviews are carried out by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that key executives are appropriately
rewarded, having due regard to the financial and commercial health and business needs of the Group.
Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration
Every company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policies, level and mix of remuneration,
and the procedures for setting remuneration, in the Company’s Annual Report. It should provide disclosure
in relation to its remuneration policies to enable investors to understand the link between remuneration paid
to directors and key management personnel, and performance.
The remuneration package of Executive Directors and key executive officers consists of:
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Fixed salary/Fee
Fixed salary is determined based on the market value of the job. Merit increments, if any, are added to the basic
salary. In line with the Singapore government’s recommendations, the Company has designated a portion of the
basic salary as a monthly variable component for certain employees, including key management staff.
The Non-Executive and Independent Directors are entitled to director’s fees. The level of fees is reviewed for
reasonableness, taking into account the size of the Company and the additional duties and responsibilities of the
directors.
Variable
Variable salaries comprise of sales commissions.
Other Benefits
Other benefits comprise of transport allowances, country club memberships, and benefits-in-kind.
The breakdown of remuneration of the Directors and key executives of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2013 is set out below:

Name

Fixed Salary/
Fees

Variable

Other Benefits

Remuneration Band from S$250,001 to S$500,000
Executive Directors
Koh Eddie
Richard Koh Chye Heng

95%
95%

–
–

5%
5%

Independent Directors
Goh Boon Kok
Wu Yu Liang

100%
100%

–
–

–
–

Non-Executive Director
Indriati Khoe

100%

–

–

Key Executives
Chew Khong Yuen
Donald Ee Keng Boon
Kelly Koh Mee Lin

100%
100%
100%

–
–
–

–
–
–

Remuneration Band up to S$250,000

Note:
Mr Chew Khong Yuen resigned as Group Financial Controller on 17 January 2014.
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Notwithstanding Guidelines 9.3 of the Code, the Company is disclosing the remuneration of only three key
executives because the Company had only such a number of key executives (who were not also directors) during
the financial year ended 31 December 2013.
The remuneration of the Directors and key executives is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and is disclosed
in the Annual Report.
Save for Mr Richard Koh Chye Heng, Mr Koh Eddie (son of Executive Chairman), Ms Kelly Koh Mee Lin (daughter of
Executive Chairman) and Ms Indriati Khoe (wife of Mr Koh Eddie) as disclosed above, there are no other employee of
the Company and its subsidiaries who are immediate family members of a Director or Managing Director cum Chief
Executive Officer and whose remuneration exceeded S$50,000 during the financial year ended 31 December 2013.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013, there were no termination, retirement or post-employment benefits
granted to the Directors, the Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer and relevant key executives other
than the standard contractual notice period termination payment in lieu of service, and the benefits for Mr Chew
Khong Yuen, a key executive of the Company.
Given the highly competitive industry conditions, the Company believes that it is not in the best interest of the
Company to fully disclose details of the remuneration of each individual Director and the aggregate remuneration
paid to the key executives of the Group.
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Principle 10: Accountability
The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.
In presenting the annual financial statements and announcements of financial results to shareholders, the Board
has a responsibility to present a fair assessment of the Group’s financial performance and position including the
prospects of the Group. The Board is mindful of the obligation to provide timely and fair disclosure of material
information and price sensitive information. The Board is accountable to the shareholders while the Management
is accountable to the Board.
The Management provides all members of the Board with a monthly management report. The Board members
review the monthly management report and meet to approve the Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and full year
financial results. All Board papers are given to the Board members prior to any Board meeting to facilitate effective
discussion and decision making.
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Principle 11: Risk Management and Internal Controls
The Board is responsible for the governance of risk. The Board should ensure that Management maintains
a sound system of risk management and internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ interests and the
company’s assets, and should determine the nature and extent of the significant risks which the Board is
willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.
The Board has reviewed the adequacy of the Group’s internal controls framework in relation to financial, operational,
compliance and information technology controls as well as risk management systems of the Group. Based on its
assessment of work performed by the external auditors and internal auditor, the Board, with the concurrence of
the Audit Committee, are of the view that the Groups’ internal controls in addressing the financial, operational,
compliance and information technology risks and the risk management systems are adequate as at 31 December
2013.
The system provides reasonable assurance against material financial misstatements or loss and includes the
safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records, the reliability of financial information,
compliance with appropriate legislation, regulation and best practices and the identification and management of
business risks.
The Board acknowledges that no system of internal controls can provide absolute assurance against the occurrence
of material errors, poor judgement in decision-making, human error, fraud or other irregularities.
The Board has also received assurance from the Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer and Group Financial
Controller that the financial records as at 31 December 2013 have been properly maintained and the financial
statements for the financial year under review give a true and fair view of the Company’s operations and finances
and regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems.
Principle 12: Audit Committee
The Board should establish an Audit Committee with written terms of reference which clearly set out its
authority and duties.
The Audit Committee comprises three members, all of whom are Non-Executive, majority of whom, including Audit
Committee Chairman, are independent of management.
The members of the Audit Committee are:
Goh Boon Kok

Chairman and Lead Independent Director

Wu Yu Liang

Independent Director

Indriati Khoe

Non-Executive Director
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The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities to safeguard the Company’s
assets, maintain adequate accounting records, develop and maintain effective systems of internal controls.
The Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient accounting and financial
management expertise and experience in discharging their duties and responsibilities.
The Company complies with Rules 712, 715 and 716 of the Catalist Rules in relation to auditing firms.
The functions and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the following:
(a)

to review effectiveness of the Company’s material internal controls, including financial, operational,
compliance and information technology controls and risk management via reviews and evaluation carried out
by the internal auditor and external independent auditors and the assistance given to them by the Company’s
management;

(b)

to review the financial statements of the Company and the half-year and full year financial results and the
respective results announcements before submission to the Board;

(c)

to review significant financial reporting issues and judgments having regard to the requirements of the
Catalist Rules;

(d)

to review and approve interested person transactions;

(e)

to assess the performance and cost-effectiveness of the internal and external independent auditors, approve
their remuneration, and recommend to the Board their re-appointment;

(f)

to review the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually;

(g)

to review the nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditors;

(h)

to meet with the external auditors, other committees, and management in separate executive sessions to
discuss any matters that these groups believe should be discussed privately with the Audit Committee; and

(i)

to review the audit plan of the internal auditor and external auditors of the Company.

In discharging the above duties, the Audit Committee confirms that it has full access to and co-operation from
Management and is given full discretion to invite any Director or Executive Director to attend its meetings. In
addition, the Audit Committee has also been given reasonable resources to enable it to perform its functions
properly.
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The Audit Committee meets with the external auditors separately, at least once a year, without the presence of
Management, whenever required.
The Audit Committee also reviews all non-audit services provided by the external auditors to ensure that the
provision of these services does not affect the independence of the auditors. For the financial year ended 31
December 2013, RSM Chio Lim LLP only provided tax compliance services to the Company other than the
audit services. The non-audit fee paid to RSM Chio Lim LLP amounted to S$9,000 for the financial year ended
31 December 2013. The Audit Committee was satisfied that provision of such services did not prejudice the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors.
The Company has put into place a whistle-blowing framework, endorsed by the Audit Committee, where employees
of the Company may, in confidence, raised concerns about possible corporate improprieties in matters of financial
reporting or other matters. The Audit Committee upon receipt of complaints or allegations from any employee,
determine if an investigation is necessary. If an investigation should be carried out, it will direct an independent
investigation to be conducted on the complaint received. The Audit Committee and the Board will receive a report
on that complaint and findings of investigation as well as a follow-up report on actions taken. There were no
complaints received for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.
The Audit Committee is kept abreast by the Management and the external auditors of changes to accounting
standards, Catalist Rules and other regulations which could have an impact on the Group’s business and financial
statements.
The Company has not put in place a Risk Management Committee. However, the management regularly reviews the
Company’s business and operational activities to identify areas of significant business risks as well as appropriate
measure to control and mitigate these risks. Management reviews all significant control policies and procedures
and highlights all significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee.
Principle 13: Internal Audit
The Company should establish an effective internal audit function that is adequately resourced and
independent of the activities it audits.
The appointment and removal of internal auditor is a matter of the Audit Committee. An internal auditor has been
appointed by the Audit Committee to assist the Audit Committee to ensure that the Company maintains a robust
and effective system of internal controls by regular monitoring of key controls, conducting audits of high risk areas
and undertaking investigations as directed by the Audit Committee.
The internal auditor’s, primary line of reporting is to the chairman of the Audit Committee. On an annual basis, the
internal auditor prepares and executes a risk-based audit plan, which complements that of the external auditors,
so as to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal controls of the Group. All audit findings
are presented to the Audit Committee and the results of the findings are also shared with the external auditors.

31

PAN ASIAN
HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Principle 14: Shareholder Rights
Companies should treat all shareholders fairly and equitably, and should recognise, protect and facilitate the
exercise of shareholders’ rights, and continually review and update such governance arrangements.
Principle 15: Communication with Shareholders
Companies should actively engage their shareholders and put in place an investor relations policy to promote
regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.
The Company ensures to facilitate the exercise of ownership rights by all shareholders. In particular, shareholders
have the right to be sufficiently informed of changes in the company or its business which would be likely to
materially affect the price or value of the company’s share.
The Company ensures that shareholders have the opportunity to participate effectively in and vote at general
meetings of shareholders. Shareholders should be informed of the rules, including voting procedures that govern
general meetings of shareholders.
The Company endeavours to communicate regularly, effectively and fairly with its shareholders. The Board ensures
that materials and information helpful to shareholders are released on a timely basis. All announcements are
communicated to the shareholders through SGXNET.
The Company did not declare any dividend for financial year ended 31 December 2013. The Company intends to
reserve its fund for future investment opportunities and as general working capital for the Company’s business.
Principle 16: Conduct of Shareholder Meetings
Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at general meetings of shareholders, and
allow shareholders the opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company.
The annual general meeting is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. There is an open question and
answer session at which shareholders may raise questions or share their views regarding the proposed resolutions
and the Company’s businesses and affairs.
In addition, the Chairman of the respective committees, the external auditors and the sponsor will be present at
the annual general meeting to address any queries from the shareholders. All minutes of general meetings are
available to shareholders upon their request.
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The Company’s Articles of Association allow a member of the Company to appoint not more than two proxies to
attend and vote at general meetings. For the time being, the Board is of the view that this is adequate to enable
shareholders to participate in general meetings of the Company and is not proposing to amend the Articles to allow
votes in absentia. All shareholders have the opportunity to participate effectively in and vote at general meetings.
Separate resolutions on each distinct issue are tabled at general meetings. “Bundling” of resolutions are kept to
a minimum and done only where the resolutions are interdependent as to form one significant proposal and only
where there are reasons and material implication involved.
While acknowledging the voting by poll is integral in the enhancement of corporate governance, the Company is
concerned over the cost effectiveness of conducting voting by poll. The Board will adhere to the requirement of
Catalist Rules where all resolutions are to be voted by poll for general meetings held on or after 1 August 2015.
RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company regularly reviews and improves its business and operational activities to identify areas of significant
business risks as well as take appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks. The Company reviews all
significant control policies and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the Audit Committee and Board.
DEALINGS IN SECURITIES
The Company has set out guidelines to the Directors and key executives of the Group in relation to dealings in the
Company’s securities. These guidelines prohibit the Company and its Directors and key executives from dealing
in the listed securities of the Group while in possession of material or price sensitive information and during the
period one month before the announcement of the Company’s half-year and full-year financial results and ending
on the date of announcement of the relevant financial results. The Directors and key executives of the Group are
also advised not to deal in the Company’s securities on short-term consideration.
All Directors and key executives of the Company are also advised to observe insider trading laws at all times even
when dealing in the Company’s securities within the permitted trading period.
INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS POLICY
The Company has adopted an internal policy in respect of any transactions with interested persons and has set
out the procedures for review and approval. The Audit Committee has reviewed the interested person transactions
for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 conducted pursuant to the shareholders’ mandate obtained in
accordance with Chapter 9 of the Catalist Rules and is satisfied that the transactions were on normal commercial
terms.
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The aggregate value of interested person transactions entered into during the financial year ended 31 December
2013 pursuant to Rule 920 is as follows:

Name of Interested Person
Purchase from:
Duvalco International Pte Ltd
Wu LLC
Duvalco Valves & Fittings (Wuxi) Co. Ltd

Aggregate value of
all interested persons
transactions during the
financial period under review
(excluding transactions
less than S$100,000 and
transactions conducted
under shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920)
S$’000
–
–
–

Aggregate value of
all interested persons
transactions conducted
under shareholders’
mandate pursuant to 920
(excluding transactions
less than S$100,000)
S$’000
227
7
3,451

MATERIAL CONTRACTS
There were no material contracts of the Company or any of its subsidiary companies involving the interests of the
Executive Chairman, Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer, each other Director or controlling shareholder,
either still subsisting at the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2013 or entered into since the end of
the previous financial year.
AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES
The amount of fees paid to auditors, RSM Chio Lim LLP, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year
under review are $153,000 and $9,000, respectively.
CATALIST SPONSOR
In compliance with Rule 1204(21) of the Catalist Rules, an amount of S$40,000 in respect of non-sponsor fee was
paid to the former Sponsor, Canaccord Genuity Singapore Pte Ltd. The existing Sponsor, CNP Compliance Pte Ltd,
has been appointed as the continuing sponsor of the Company, with effect from 1 February 2013. There was no
non-sponsor fee paid to the existing Sponsor for the year under review.
UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS
There has been no proceeds raised in the financial year under review and no outstanding proceeds from previous
fund raising.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Apart from creating long term value for its stakeholders and upholding high standard of governance, the Company
recognises the importance of environment sustainability and social responsibility.
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The directors of the Company are pleased to present their report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the reporting year ended 31 December 2013.
1.

Directors at Date of Report
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:
Richard Koh Chye Heng
Koh Eddie
Goh Boon Kok
Wu Yu Liang
Indriati Khoe

2.

Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Benefits by Means of the Acquisition of Shares and
Debentures
Neither at the end of the reporting year nor at any time during the reporting year did there subsist any
arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate except as disclosed in
section 5 below.

3.

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Debentures
The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the reporting year had no interests in the share
capital and options of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’
shareholdings kept by the Company under section 164 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 except as follows:
Deemed interest
Name of directors and
companies in which interests are held
In the Company

At beginning of

At end of the

the reporting year

reporting year

Number of shares of no par value

Richard Koh Chye Heng

141,700,000

165,137,500

Koh Eddie

141,700,000

165,137,500

Indriati Khoe

141,700,000

165,137,500

Direct interest
Name of directors and
companies in which interests are held

At beginning of

At end of the

the reporting year

reporting year

In the Company

Number of shares of no par value

Goh Boon Kok

2,150,000

2,150,000
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3.

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Debentures (Continued)
Direct interest
Name of directors and
companies in which interests are held

At beginning of

At end of the

the reporting year

reporting year

In the parent company
– Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Number of shares of no par value

Richard Koh Chye Heng

750,050
1

Koh Eddie

750,050
1

(a)

750,052

(a)

750,052
Deemed interest

Name of directors and
companies in which interests are held
In the Company

At beginning of

At end of the

the reporting year

reporting year

Number of warrants

(b)

Richard Koh Chye Heng

23,437,500

–

Koh Eddie

23,437,500

–

Indriati Khoe

23,437,500

–
Direct interest

Name of directors and
companies in which interests are held
In the Company
Goh Boon Kok

At beginning of

At end of the

the reporting year

reporting year

Number of warrants
1,075,000

(b)

–

By virtue of section 7 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, Koh Eddie, Richard Koh Chye Heng and Indriati
Khoe are deemed to have an interest in all the related corporations of the Company.
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(a)

Richard Koh Chye Heng holds one golden share in Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte. Ltd. at the beginning and end of the
reporting year and by virtue of Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte. Ltd.’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, he has
or is deemed to have the ability to exercise dominant influence over the parent company as well as the listed
company.

(b)

The warrants expired on 11 January 2013.

(c)

The directors’ interest as at 21 January 2014 were the same as those at the end of the reporting year.
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4.

Contractual Benefits of Directors
Since the beginning of the reporting year, no director of the Company has received or become entitled to
receive a benefit which is required to be disclosed under section 201(8) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50
by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or chief executive
officer or controlling shareholder or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a Company in which he
has a substantial financial interest except as disclosed in the financial statements.
There were certain transactions (as disclosed in the financial statements) with corporations in which certain
directors have an interest.

5.

Share Options and Warrants
During the reporting year, no option to take up unissued shares of the Company or any subsidiary was
granted except as follows:
On 3 January 2011, the Company made a renounceable non-underwritten rights issues of up to 62,500,000
new ordinary shares in the capital of the Company at an issue price of $0.07 for each rights share on the
basis of one rights share for every two existing ordinary shares held by entitled shareholders and up to
62,500,000 free detachable warrants. Each warrant carries the right to subscribe for one new ordinary share
in the capital of the Company at an exercise price of $0.08 for each new share, on the basis of one warrant
for every one rights share subscribed.
During the reporting year ended 31 December 2013, an aggregate of 26,326,036 new ordinary shares were
issued by virtue of the exercise of 26,326,036 warrants at the stated exercise price. The warrants expired on
11 January 2013. At the end of the reporting year ended 31 December 2013, no warrants were outstanding.
At the end of the reporting year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or any subsidiary under
option.

6.

Independent Auditors
The independent auditors, RSM Chio Lim LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.
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7.

Audit Committee
The members of the Audit Committee at the date of this report are as follows:
Goh Boon Kok

(Chairman)

Indriati Khoe

(Non-executive director)

Wu Yu Liang

(Independent director)

The Audit Committee performs the functions specified by section 201B(5) of the Companies Act. Among
other functions, it performed the following:
•
•

Reviewed with the independent external auditors their audit plan;
Reviewed with the independent external auditors their evaluation of the Company’s internal
accounting controls relevant to their statutory audit, and their report on the financial statements and
the assistance given by the Company’s officers to them;

•
•

Reviewed with the internal auditor the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;
Reviewed the financial statements of the Group and the Company prior to their submission to the
directors of the Company for adoption; and

•

Reviewed the interested person transaction (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of SGX).

Other functions performed by the Audit Committee are described in the report on corporate governance
included in the annual report. It also includes an explanation of how independent auditors objectivity and
independence is safeguarded where the independent auditors provide non-audit services.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the board of directors that the independent auditors, RSM Chio
Lim LLP, be nominated for re-appointment as independent auditors at the next annual general meeting of
the Company.
8.

Directors’ Opinion on the Adequacy of the Internal Controls
Based on the internal controls established and maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal
auditor and independent external auditors, relevant to their statutory audit, and reviews performed by
management and other committees of the board, the Audit Committee and the board are of the opinion that
the Company’s internal controls, addressing financial, operational and compliance risks, are adequate as at
the end of the reporting year 31 December 2013.
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9.

Subsequent Developments
There are no significant developments subsequent to the release of the Group’s and the Company’s
preliminary financial statements, as announced on 28 February 2014, which would materially affect the
Group’s and the Company’s operating and financial performance as of the date of this report except for an
increase of $279,000 to Loss, net of tax and an increase of $278,000 to other comprehensive loss for the
year due primarily to audit adjustments made to certain subsidiary’s financial statements subsequent to the
preliminary announcement.

On Behalf of The Directors

Richard Koh Chye Heng
Director

Koh Eddie
Director

7 April 2014
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In the opinion of the directors,
(a)

the accompanying consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statements of financial position,
statements of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows, and notes thereto are drawn up so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2013 and of the results and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company and of the Group
for the reporting year then ended; and

(b)

at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay
its debts as and when they fall due.

The board of directors approved and authorised these financial statements for issue.

On Behalf of The Directors

Richard Koh Chye Heng
Director

Koh Eddie
Director
7 April 2014
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TO THE MEMBERS OF PAN ASIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pan Asian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 121, which comprise the statements of financial position of the
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Group, and statement of changes in equity
of the Company for the reporting year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition;
and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true
and fair statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statements of financial position and to
maintain accountability of assets.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and the
statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and of the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group
and the changes in equity of the Company for the reporting year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with
the provisions of the Act.

RSM Chio Lim LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
7 April 2014
Partner in charge of audit: Paul Lee Seng Meng
Effective from year ended 31 December 2012
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Group
Notes

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

48,209

50,581

(38,657)

(39,133)

9,552

11,448

5

84

6

208

694

Marketing and Distribution Costs

7

(5,963)

(5,512)

Administrative Expenses

7

(5,533)

(5,677)

(256)

(281)

(560)

(310)

(40)

(60)

5

Revenue
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit
Other Items of Income
Interest Income
Other Credits
Other Items of Expense

Finance Costs
Other Charges

6

Share of Loss from Equity-Accounted Joint Ventures

(2,587)

386

(113)

(257)

(2,700)

129

Exchange Differences on Translating Foreign Operations, Net of Tax

255

(231)

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Year, Net of Tax

255

(231)

Total Comprehensive Loss

(2,445)

(102)

(Loss) Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent, Net of Tax

(1,622)

55

(Loss) Profit Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests, Net of Tax

(1,078)

74

(Loss) Profit, Net of Tax

(2,700)

129

Total Comprehensive Loss Attributable to Owners of the Parent

(1,367)

(105)

(1,078)

3

(2,445)

(102)

(Loss) Profit Before Tax
Income Tax Expense

9

(Loss) Profit, Net of Tax
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Total Comprehensive (Loss) Income Attributable to
Non-Controlling Interests
Total Comprehensive Loss
(Loss) Earnings Per Share

Cents

Cents

Basic

10

(0.76)

0.03

Diluted

10

(0.76)

0.03

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group
Notes

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment

11

Investments in Subsidiaries

12

Investments in Joint Ventures

13

7,464

2,696

2,850

–

–

10,445

11,100

110

100

105

105

6,694

Intangible Assets

14

2,456

2,510

–

–

Land Use Rights

15

2,821

2,809

–

–

Other Assets

16

103

87

103

87

Deferred Tax Assets

9

165

173

–

–

12,349

13,143

13,349

14,142

Total Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Inventories

17

7,648

6,952

4,036

2,685

Trade and Other Receivables

18

20,927

19,343

16,667

18,601

Other Assets

19

3,147

2,373

952

469

Cash and Cash Equivalents

20

4,951

3,906

2,328

937

Total Current Assets

36,673

32,574

23,983

22,692

Total Assets

49,022

45,717

37,332

36,834

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners
of the parent
Share Capital

21

15,300

13,194

15,300

13,194

Other Reserves

23

18

(237)

–

–

7,574

9,196

7,596

9,843

22,892

22,153

22,896

23,037

1,507

2,461

–

–

24,399

24,614

22,896

23,037

Retained Earnings
Equity, Attributable to Owners of
the Parent, Total
Non-Controlling Interests
Total Equity
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Group
Notes

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities

9

192

216

81

81

Other Financial Liabilities

24

196

200

16

49

388

416

97

130

539

562

253

253

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Income Tax Payable
Other Financial Liabilities

24

11,717

5,121

8,505

4,124

Trade and Other Payables

25

11,979

15,004

5,581

9,290

Total Current Liabilities

24,235

20,687

14,339

13,667

Total Liabilities

24,623

21,103

14,436

13,797

Total Equity and Liabilities

49,022

45,717

37,332

36,834

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Non-

Attributable

Controlling

to Parent

Share

Retained

Other

Equity

Interests

Sub-total

Capital

Earnings

Reserves

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

13,194

9,196

(237)

Total
Group:
Current Year:
Opening Balance at 1 January 2013

24,614

2,461

22,153

(2,445)

(1,078)

(1,367)

–

(1,622)

255

2,106

–

2,106

2,106

–

–

(38)

(38)

–

–

–

–

162

162

–

–

–

–

24,399

1,507

22,892

15,300

7,574

18

24,659

2,555

22,104

13,174

9,007

(77)

(102)

3

(105)

–

55

(160)

20

–

20

20

–

–

(22)

(156)

134

–

134

–

59

59

–

–

–

–

24,614

2,461

22,153

13,194

9,196

(237)

Movements in Equity:
Total Comprehensive (Loss) Income
for the Year
Issuance of Shares (Note 21)
Reduction of Non-Controlling
Interest (Note 12)
Incorporation of Subsidiaries
(Note 12)
Closing Balance
at 31 December 2013
Previous Year:
Opening Balance at 1 January 2012
Movements in Equity:
Total Comprehensive (Loss) Income
for the Year
Issuance of Shares (Note 21)
Disposal of Non-Controlling Interest
without a change in control
(Note 12)
Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Note 26)
Closing Balance
at 31 December 2012

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company:

Total

Share

Retained

Equity

Capital

Earnings

$’000

$’000

$’000

23,037

13,194

9,843

Current Year:
Opening Balance at 1 January 2013
Movements in Equity:
Issuance of Shares (Note 21)

2,106

2,106

–

Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year

(2,247)

–

(2,247)

Closing Balance at 31 December 2013

22,896

15,300

7,596

23,471

13,174

10,297

Previous Year:
Opening Balance at 1 January 2012
Movements in Equity:
Issuance of Shares (Note 21)
Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year
Closing Balance at 31 December 2012

20

20

–

(454)

–

(454)

23,037

13,194

9,843

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
(Loss) Profit Before Tax

(2,587)

386

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

984

954

Loss on Disposal of Plant and Equipment

242

–

Amortisation of Intangible Asset

54

116

Amortisation of Land Use Rights

60

43

Refund of Shortfall of Profits Guarantee by Vendor (Note 27)

–

(427)

Gain on Bargain Purchases

–

(246)

Adjustment for:

Share of Loss from Equity-Accounted Joint Ventures

40

60

Interest Income

(5)

(84)

256

281

(956)

1,083

–

1,000

(1,621)

(603)

(812)

532

Interest Expense
Operating Cash Flow before Changes in Working Capital
Cash Restricted in Use Over 3 months
Trade and Other Receivables
Other Assets
Inventories

(696)

(2,494)

Trade and Other Payables

(3,025)

(1,398)

Net Cash Flows Used in Operations

(7,110)

(1,880)

(152)

(18)

(7,262)

(1,898)

30

–

(563)

(406)

–

60

Income Taxes Paid
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds from Disposal of Plant and Equipment
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 20B)
Disposal of Non-Controlling Interest Without Change in Control
Net Cash Outflow from Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Note 26)

–

(489)

Cash Inflow from Incorporation of Subsidiaries (Note 12)

162

–

Investment in Joint Ventures

(50)

(100)

Reduction of Non-Controlling Interest (Note 12)

(38)

–

5

84

(454)

(851)

Interest Received
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
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Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Interest Paid

(233)

(281)

Repayment of Bank Borrowings

–

(606)

Increase from New Borrowings

6,391

–

(29)

(69)

Issuance of Shares

2,106

20

Net Cash From/(Used in) Financing Activities

8,235

(936)

519

(3,685)

Finance Lease Repayment

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Statement of Cash Flows, Beginning Balance

296

(175)

3,116

6,976

3,931

3,116

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Statement of Cash Flows,
Ending Balance (Note 20A)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.

General
The Company is incorporated in Singapore with limited liability. The financial statements are presented in
Singapore dollars and they cover the Company (referred to as “parent”) and the subsidiaries (the “Group”)
and the Group’s interest in joint ventures.
The board of directors approved and authorised these financial statements for issue on the date of the
statement of directors.
The Company’s principal activities are those relating to supply of piping systems and related accessories
for use in water and wastewater infrastructure developments. It is listed on Catalist which is a market on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are described in Note 12 below.
The registered office: 2 Tractor Road, Singapore 627966. The Company is situated in Singapore.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Accounting Convention
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(“FRS”) and the related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) as issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards
Council and the Companies Act, Chapter 50. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis
under the historical cost convention except where an FRS requires an alternative treatment (such as fair
values) as disclosed where appropriate in these financial statements. Other comprehensive income comprises
items of income and expense (including reclassification adjustments) that are not recognised in the income
statement, as required or permitted by FRS. Reclassification adjustments are amounts reclassified to profit
or loss in the income statement in the current period that were recognised in other comprehensive income
in the current or previous periods.
Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements made up to the end of the reporting
year of the Company and all of its directly and indirectly controlled subsidiaries. The consolidated financial
statements are the financial statements of the Group presented as those of a single economic entity and are
prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.
All significant intragroup balances and transactions, including profit or loss and other comprehensive income
items and dividends are eliminated on consolidation. The results of any subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the reporting year are accounted for from the respective dates of acquisition or up to the date of
disposal which is the date on which effective control is obtained of the acquired business, until that control
ceases.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the loss of control are
accounted for within equity as transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiary. When the Group loses control of a subsidiary it derecognises the assets and liabilities and
related equity components of the former subsidiary. Any gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary is measured at its fair value at the date when control is lost
and is subsequently accounted as available-for-sale financial assets in accordance with FRS 39.
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on the same basis, and as permitted by the
Companies Act, Chapter 50, no statement of income is presented for the Company.
Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Apart from those
involving estimations, management has made judgements in the process of applying the entity’s accounting
policies. The areas requiring management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgements, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed at the end of
this footnote, where applicable.
Revenue Recognition
The revenue amount is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the gross inflow of
economic benefits during the reporting year arising from the course of the activities of the entity and it is
shown net of any related sales taxes, estimated returns and rebates. Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, there is neither
continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold, and the amount of revenue and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably. Revenue from rendering of services that are of short duration
is recognised when the services are completed. Rental revenue is recognised on a time-proportion basis
that takes into account the effective yield on the asset on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Interest
is recognised using the effective interest method. Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy on construction contracts (see below).
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Construction Contracts
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, the contract revenue and costs
associated with the contract are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting year using the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs method except where
this would not be representative of the stage of completion. Contract costs consist of costs that relate
directly to the specific project, costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated
to the project and such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the customer under the terms of the
contract. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they
have been agreed with the customer. The stage of completion method relies on estimates of total expected
contract revenue and costs, as well as dependable measurement of the progress made towards completing
a particular project. Recognised revenues and profits are subject to revisions during the project in the event
that the assumptions regarding the overall project outcome are revised. The cumulative impact of a revision
in estimates is recorded in the period such revisions become likely and estimable.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. The work in progress projects have operating cycles longer than
one year. The Group includes in current assets amounts relating to the contracts realisable over a period in
excess of one year. When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably: (a) revenue
is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable; and (b)
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Employee Benefits
Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recorded as an expense as they fall
due. The entity’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to the amount that it agrees to contribute to an
independently administered fund which is the Central Provident Fund in Singapore (a government managed
retirement benefit plan).
Certain subsidiaries operate defined contribution retirement benefit plans in which employees are entitled
to join upon fulfilling certain conditions. The assets of the fund are held separately from those of the entity
in an independently administered fund. The entity contributes an amount equal to a fixed percentage of the
salary of each participating employee. Contributions are charged to profit or loss in the period to which they
relate. This plan is in addition to the contributions to government managed retirement benefit plans such as
the Central Provident Fund in Singapore which specifies the employer’s obligations which are dealt with as
defined contribution retirement benefit plans.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Employee Benefits (Continued)
For employee leave entitlement the expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of
compensated absences is recognised in the case of accumulating compensated absences, when the
employees render service that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences; and in the case
of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. A liability for bonuses is recognised
where the entity is contractually obliged or where there is constructive obligation based on past practice.
Income Tax
The income taxes are accounted using the asset and liability method that requires the recognition of taxes
payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequence
of events that have been recognised in the financial statements or tax returns. The measurements of current
and deferred tax liabilities and assets are based on provisions of the enacted or substantially enacted tax
laws; the effects of future changes in tax laws or rates are not anticipated. Income tax expense represents
the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as
income or as an expense in profit or loss unless the tax relates to items that are recognised in the same or
a different period outside profit or loss. For such items recognised outside profit or loss the current tax and
deferred tax are recognised (a) in other comprehensive income if the tax is related to an item recognised in
other comprehensive income and (b) directly in equity if the tax is related to an item recognised directly in
equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
income tax authority. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at end of each reporting year
and is reduced, if necessary, by the amount of any tax benefits that, based on available evidence, are not
expected to be realised. A deferred tax amount is recognised for all temporary differences, unless the
deferred tax amount arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which (i) is not
a business combination; and (ii) at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss). A deferred tax liability or asset is recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures except where the reporting entity is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the taxable temporary difference and it is probable that the taxable temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future or for deductible temporary differences, they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future and they cannot be utilised against taxable profits.
Foreign Currency Transactions
The functional currency is the Singapore dollar as it reflects the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each end of the reporting year, recorded monetary balances and
balances measured at fair value that are denominated in non-functional currencies are reported at the rates
ruling at the end of the reporting year and fair value dates respectively. All realised and unrealised exchange
adjustment gains and losses are dealt with in profit or loss except when recognised in other comprehensive
income and if applicable deferred in equity such as for qualifying cash flow hedges. The presentation is in
the functional currency.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Translation of Financial Statements of Other Entities
Each entity in the Group determines the appropriate functional currency as it reflects the primary economic
environment in which the relevant reporting entity operates. In translating the financial statements of such
an entity for incorporation in the combined financial statements in the presentation currency the assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated at end of the reporting year rates of exchange and
income and expense items for each statement presenting profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average rates of exchange for the reporting year. The resulting translation adjustments (if
any) are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity
until the disposal of that relevant reporting entity.
Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. The interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred except that borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate the gross carrying amounts of the assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives of each part of an item of these assets. The annual
rates of depreciation are as follows:
Leasehold properties

–

Over the terms of lease that are from 2% to 4.3%.

Plant and equipment

–

10% to 33.33%.

An asset is depreciated when it is available for use until it is derecognised even if during that period the
item is idle. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost on initial recognition and after initial recognition at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The gain or loss arising from
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in profit or loss.
The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at end of each reporting year and, if
expectations differ significantly from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate, and the depreciation charge for the current and future periods are adjusted.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
Cost also includes acquisition cost, borrowing cost capitalised and any cost directly attributable to bringing
the asset or component to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Subsequent cost are recognised as an asset only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss when they are incurred.
Land Use Rights
Land use rights under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently amortised on a straightline basis over the remaining lease period of 48 years.
Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost (weighted average method) and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. A write down on cost is made where
the cost is not recoverable or if the selling prices have declined. Cost includes all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. In
the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads
based on normal operating capacity.
Leases
Whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception date, that is, whether (a) fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets (the asset); and (b) the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. Leases are classified
as finance leases if substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
recognised as an asset and as a liability in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined
at the inception of the lease. The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease
payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease, if this is practicable to determine, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct costs of the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset.
The excess of the lease payments over the recorded lease liability are treated as finance charges which are
allocated to each reporting year during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the reporting years in
which they are incurred. The assets are depreciated as owned depreciable assets. Leases where the lessor
effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are classified as
operating leases. For operating leases, lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is representative of
the time pattern of the user’s benefit, even if the payments are not on that basis. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease expense.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the user’s
benefit, even if the payments are not on that basis. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity including unincorporated and special purpose entity that is controlled by the Group.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights or the ability to appoint
or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors or to cast the majority of votes at meetings
of the board of directors. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
In the Company’s own separate financial statements, an investment in a subsidiary is accounted for at cost
less any allowance for impairment in value. Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss for a subsidiary is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying value and the net book value of the investment
in a subsidiary are not necessarily indicative of the amount that would be realised in a current market.
Joint Ventures
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement with other parties to undertake an economic activity that is
subject to joint control. The accounting for investments in a joint venture is on the equity method. The net
book value of the investment in the joint venture is not necessarily indicative of the amounts that would be
realised in a current market exchange. The reporting entity discontinues the use of this method from the date
that it loses joint control over the joint venture and accounts for the investment in accordance with FRS 39
from that date. Any gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment retained in the former joint
venture is measured at its fair value at the date that it ceases to be a joint venture.
Losses of a joint venture in excess of the Group’s interest in the relevant entity are not recognised except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation. Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
reporting entity and a joint venture are recognised in the financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
reporting entity’s interests in the relevant joint venture.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Joint Ventures (Continued)
In the Company’s own separate financial statements, an investment in a joint venture is stated at cost less
any allowance for impairment in value. Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss for a joint venture is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying value and the net book value of a joint venture
are not necessarily indicative of the amount that would be realised in a current market exchange.
Business Combinations
A business combination is transaction or other event which requires that the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed constitute a business. It is accounted for by applying the acquisition method of accounting. The
cost of a business combination includes the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquiree.
The acquisition-related costs are expensed in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received except for any costs to issue debt or equity securities are recognised in accordance with FRS 32 and
FRS 39. As of the acquisition date, the acquirer recognises, separately from goodwill, the identifiable assets
acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree measured at acquisition-date
fair values as defined in and that meet the conditions for recognition under FRS 103. Goodwill is an asset
representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination
that are not individually identified and separately recognised. If the acquirer has made a gain from a bargain
purchase that gain is recognised in profit or loss. If there is a gain on bargain purchase, for the gain on bargain
purchase a reassessment is made of the identification and measurement of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities and the measurement of the cost of the business combination and any
excess remaining after this reassessment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments resulting from the application of purchase accounting at the date of
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and are recorded at the exchange rates
prevailing at the acquisition date and are subsequently translated at the period end exchange rate.
Where the fair values are estimated on a provisional basis they are finalised within one year from the
acquisition date with consequent retrospective changes to the amounts recognised at the acquisition date
to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
and, if known, would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognised as of that date.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Non-Controlling Interests
The non-controlling interests in the net assets and net results of a consolidated subsidiary are shown
separately in the appropriate components of the consolidated financial statements. For each business
combination, any non-controlling interest in the acquiree (subsidiary) is initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Where
the non-controlling interest is measured at fair value, the valuation techniques and key model inputs used
are disclosed in the relevant note. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the noncontrolling interests having a deficit balance.
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, an annual impairment test is performed at
the same time every year on an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or an intangible asset not yet
available for use. The carrying amount of other non-financial assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting
year for indications of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written down through profit or
loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The impairment loss is the excess of the carrying amount over
the recoverable amount and is recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cashgenerating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. When the fair value less
costs to sell method is used, any available recent market transactions are taken into consideration. When the
value in use method is adopted, in assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
At end of each reporting year non-financial assets other than goodwill with impairment loss recognised in
prior periods are assessed for possible reversal of the impairment. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill
Goodwill is an asset representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a
business combination that are not individually identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is recognised as
of the acquisition date measured as the excess of (a) over (b); (a) being the aggregate of: (i) the consideration
transferred which generally requires acquisition-date fair value; (ii) the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree measured in accordance with FRS 103 (measured either at fair value or as the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets); and (iii) in a business combination
achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; and (b) being the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed measured in accordance with this FRS 103.
After initial recognition, goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortised. Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment,
goodwill and also any intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or an intangible asset not yet available for
use are tested for impairment, at least annually. Goodwill impairment is not reversed in any circumstances.
For the purpose of impairment testing and since the acquisition date of the business combination, goodwill
is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree were
assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated
represent the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and is not larger than a segment.
Intangible Assets
Identifiable intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are initially recognised separately
from goodwill if the asset’s fair value can be measured reliably, irrespective of whether the asset had been
recognised by the acquiree before the business combination. An intangible asset is considered identifiable
only if it is separable or if it arises from contractual or other legal rights, regardless of whether those rights
are transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.
The Group’s intangible assets consist of order backlog. The amortisable amount of an intangible asset is
allocated based on the percentage of revenue recognised on contracts.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Segment Reporting
The Group discloses financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments. Reportable segments
are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified criteria. Operating
segments are components about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly
by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.
Generally, financial information is reported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating operating
segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.
Financial Assets
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:
A financial asset is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial recognition of financial assets
is at fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The transaction price for financial asset not
classified at fair value through profit or loss includes the transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition or issue of financial
assets classified at fair value through profit or loss are expensed immediately. The transactions are recorded
at the trade date.
Irrespective of the legal form of the transactions performed, financial assets are derecognised when they
pass the “substance over form” based on the derecognition test prescribed by FRS 39 relating to the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer of control. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is currently a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial assets in one of the following four
categories under FRS 39 is as follows:
1.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: As at end of the reporting year date there were
no financial assets classified in this category.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Assets (Continued)
2.

Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Assets that are for sale immediately
or in the near term are not classified in this category. These assets are carried at amortised costs
using the effective interest method (except that short-duration receivables with no stated interest
rate are normally measured at original invoice amount unless the effect of imputing interest would be
significant) minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for impairment
or uncollectibility. Impairment charges are provided only when there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
The methodology ensures that an impairment loss is not recognised on the initial recognition of an
asset. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For
impairment, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Typically the
trade and other receivables are classified in this category.

3.

Held-to-maturity financial assets: As at end of the year date there were no financial assets classified
in this category.

4.

Available-for-sale financial assets: As at end of the year date there were no financial assets classified
in this category.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances, on demand deposits and any highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. For the statement of cash flows
the item includes cash and cash equivalents less cash subject to restriction and bank overdrafts payable on
demand that form an integral part of cash management.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:
A financial liability is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and it is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The initial recognition of financial liability is
at fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The transaction price for financial liability not
classified at fair value through profit or loss includes the transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition or issue of
financial liability classified at fair value through profit or loss are expensed immediately. The transactions are
recorded at the trade date. Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting year.
Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial liabilities in one of the following two
categories under FRS 39 is as follows:
1.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Liabilities are classified in this category when they
are incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term (trading liabilities)
or are derivatives (except for a derivative that is a designated and effective hedging instrument) or
have been classified in this category because the conditions are met to use the “fair value option”
and it is used. Financial guarantee contracts if significant are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently measured at the greater of (a) the amount determined in accordance with FRS 37 and
(b) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with FRS 18. All changes in fair value relating to liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

2.

Other financial liabilities: All liabilities, which have not been classified as in the previous category fall
into this residual category. These liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Trade and other payables and borrowings are usually classified in this category. Items
classified within current trade and other payables are not usually re-measured, as the obligation is
usually known with a high degree of certainty and settlement is short-term.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government Grants
A government grant is recognised at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions
attaching to it will be complied with and that the grant will be received. A grant in recognition of specific
expenses is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs that
they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.
A government grant related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is presented in the
statement of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred income.
Fair Value of Measurement
Fair value is taken to be the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (that is, an exit price). It is a
market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. When measuring fair value, management
uses the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability under current
market conditions, including assumptions about risk. The entity’s intention to hold an asset or to settle or
otherwise fulfil a liability is not taken into account as relevant when measuring fair value. In making the
fair value measurement, management determines the following: (a) the particular asset or liability being
measured (these are identified and disclosed in the relevant notes below); (b) for a non-financial asset, the
highest and best use of the asset and whether the asset is used in combination with other assets or on a
stand-alone basis; (c) the market in which an orderly transaction would take place for the asset or liability;
and (d) the appropriate valuation techniques to use when measuring fair value. The valuation techniques
used maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise unobservable inputs. These inputs are
consistent with the inputs a market participant may use when pricing the asset or liability.
The fair value measurements and related disclosures categorise the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value by using a fair value hierarchy of three levels. These are recurring fair value measurements
unless state otherwise in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The level is measured on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
in its entirety. Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the
beginning of the reporting year. If a financial instrument measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask
price, the price within the bid-ask spread or mid-market pricing that is most representative of fair value in
the circumstances is used to measure fair value regardless of where the input is categorised within the fair
value hierarchy. If there is no market, or the markets available are not active, the fair value is established
by using an acceptable valuation technique.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Fair Value of Measurement (Continued)
The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term
maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount of
current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value. The fair values of non-current
financial instruments may not be disclosed separately unless there are significant differences at the end
of the reporting year and in the event the fair values are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial
statements.
Equity
Equity instruments are contracts that give a residual interest in the net assets of the Company. Ordinary
shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are recognised at the amount of proceeds received net
of incremental costs directly attributable to the transaction. Dividends on equity are recognised as liabilities
when they are declared. Interim dividends are recognised when declared by the directors.
Provisions
A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A provision is made
using best estimates of the amount required in settlement and where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount recognised is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense. Changes in estimates are reflected in profit or loss in the reporting year they occur.
Critical Judgements, Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties
The critical judgements made in the process of applying the accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements and the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting year, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities currently or within the
next reporting year are discussed below. These estimates and assumptions are periodically monitored to
ensure they incorporate all relevant information available at the date when financial statements are prepared.
However, this does not prevent actual figures differing from estimates.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Critical Judgements, Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties (Continued)
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
An allowance is made for doubtful trade accounts for estimated losses resulting from the subsequent
inability of the customers to make required payments. If the financial conditions of the customers were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required in future periods. Management generally analyses trade receivables and historical bad debts,
customer concentrations, and customer creditworthiness when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance
for doubtful trade receivables. To the extent that it is feasible impairment and uncollectibility is determined
individually for each item. In cases where that process is not feasible, a collective evaluation of impairment
is performed. At the end of the reporting year, the trade receivables carrying amount approximates the fair
value and the carrying amounts might change materially within the next reporting year but these changes
would not arise from assumptions or other sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
year. The carrying amount is disclosed in Note 18 on trade and other receivables.
Contracts work-in-progress:
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and profits
associated with the construction contract are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the reporting year end date using the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs method. The stage of completion method
relies on estimates of total expected contract revenue and costs, as well as dependable measurement of
the progress made towards completing a particular project. Recognised revenues and profits are subject
to revisions during the project in the event that the assumptions regarding the overall project outcome are
revised. The cumulative impact of a revision in estimates is recorded in the period such revisions become
likely and estimable. An expected loss on the construction contract is recognised as an expense immediately.
The long-term work in progress projects have operating cycles longer than one year. The Company includes
in current assets amounts relating to the long-term contracts realisable over a period in excess of one year.
Income tax expense:
The entity recognises tax liabilities and assets tax based on an estimation of the likely taxes due, which
requires significant judgement as to the ultimate tax determination of certain items. Where the actual amount
arising from these issues differs from these estimates, such differences will have an impact on income tax
and deferred tax amounts in the period when such determination is made.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Critical Judgements, Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties (Continued)
Net realisable value of inventories:
A review is made periodically on inventory for excess inventory and declines in net realisable value below
cost and an allowance is recorded against the inventory balance for any such declines. The review requires
management to consider the future demand for the products. In any case the realisable value represents the
best estimate of the recoverable amount and is based on the acceptable evidence available at the end of the
reporting year and inherently involves estimates regarding the future expected realisable value. The usual
considerations for determining the amount of allowance or write-down include ageing analysis, technical
assessment and subsequent events. In general, such an evaluation process requires significant judgement
and materially affects the carrying amount of inventories at the end of the reporting year. Possible changes
in these estimates could result in revisions to the stated value of the inventories. The carrying amount of
inventories at the end of the reporting year of the Group and the Company were approximately $7,648,000
(2012: $6,952,000) and $4,036,000 (2012: $2,685,000) respectively.
Deferred tax estimation:
Management judgment is required in determining the amount of current and deferred tax recognised as
income or expense and the extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised. A deferred tax asset is
recognised if it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available in the future against which the
temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised. Management also considers future taxable
income and tax planning strategies in assessing whether deferred tax assets should be recognised in order
to reflect changed circumstances as well as tax regulations. As a result, due to their inherent nature, it is
likely that deferred tax calculation relates to complex fact patterns for which assessments of likelihood are
judgmental and not susceptible to precise determination. The deferred tax amounts are disclosed under
Note 9C.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:
The estimates for the useful lives and related depreciation charges for property, plant and equipment is
based on commercial and production factors which could change significantly as a result of innovations and
competitor actions in response to market conditions. The depreciation charge is increased where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, or the carrying amounts written off or written down for technically
obsolete items or assets that have been abandoned. It is impracticable to disclose the extent of the possible
effects. It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next reporting
year that are different from assumptions could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
balances affected. The carrying amounts of the specific asset (or class of assets) affected by the assumption
of the Group and the Company were approximately $6,694,000 (2012: $7,464,000) and $2,696,000 (2012:
$ 2,850,000) respectively.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Critical Judgements, Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties (Continued)
Estimated impairment of subsidiaries or joint ventures:
Where a subsidiary or joint ventures is in net equity deficit and or has suffered losses a test is made whether
the investment in the investee has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the stated accounting policy.
This determination requires significant judgement. An estimate is made of the future profitability of the
investee, and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the investee, including factors such
as industry and sector performance, and operational and financing cash flow. The amount of the relevant
investment is $1,237,000 (2012: $1,237,000) at the end of the reporting year. It is impracticable to disclose
the extent of the possible effects. It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes
within the next reporting year that are different from assumptions could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected.
Assessment of impairment of goodwill:
An assessment is made annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment loss. The assessment
process is complex and highly judgmental and is based on assumptions that are affected by expected future
market or economic conditions. Judgement is required in identifying the cash generating units (“CGU”) and
the use of estimates as disclosed in Note 14. Actual outcomes could vary from these estimates as disclosed
in Note 14.
Estimated impairment of land use rights and deposit paid to a contractor:
The Group has land use rights at a carrying value of $2,821,000 (2012: $2,809,000) and a deposit paid
to a contractor of $1,654,000 (2012: $1,557,000) disclosed under Note 15 and Note 19 respectively. An
assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, an estimate is made of the recoverable amount of the asset. The Group has
entered into certain commitments pursuant to its acquisition of land use rights which if not met, may
potentially result in an impairment to the land use rights. Details of the commitments are disclosed in Note
29. In management’s judgement, the potential impairment of the land use rights and deposit paid to the
contractor is unlikely under the circumstances. See Note 29 for further details.

67

PAN ASIAN
HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2013

3.

Related Party Relationships and Transactions
FRS 24 defines a related party as a person or entity that is related to the reporting entity and it includes
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family if that person: (i) has control or joint control over
the reporting entity; (ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or (iii) is a member of the key
management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity. (b) An entity is related to
the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply: (i) The entity and the reporting entity are members
of the same group. (ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity. (iii) Both entities are joint
ventures of the same third party. (iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity. (v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. (vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a). (vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
3.1

Related companies:

The Company is a subsidiary of Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte. Ltd., incorporated in Singapore, which is also the
Company’s ultimate parent company. Related companies in these financial statements include the members
of the ultimate parent company’s group of companies.
Richard Koh Chye Heng holds one golden share in Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte. Ltd. at the beginning and end of
the reporting year. By virtue of Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte. Ltd.’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, he
has, or is deemed to have, the ability to exercise dominant influence over the parent company as well as
the listed company.
There are transactions and arrangements between the reporting entity and members of the group and the
effects of these on the basis determined between the parties are reflected in these financial statements.
The intercompany balances are unsecured without fixed repayment terms and interest unless stated
otherwise. For any non-current balances and financial guarantees no interest or charge is imposed unless
stated otherwise.
Intragroup transactions and balances that have been eliminated in these consolidated financial statements
are not disclosed as related party transactions and balances.
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the financial statements,
this item includes the following:–
Ultimate parent company

Rental income
Rental expense
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2013

2012

$’000

$’000

2

2

(17)

(17)
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3.

Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Continued)
3.2

Other related parties:

There are transactions and arrangements between the reporting entity and related parties and the effects of
these on the basis determined between the parties are reflected in these financial statements. The current
related party balances are unsecured without fixed repayment terms and interest unless stated otherwise.
The current balances are unsecured without fixed repayment terms and interest unless stated otherwise.
For any significant non-current balances and significant financial guarantees an interest or charge is charged
or imputed unless stated otherwise.
Significant related party transactions:
In addition to transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the financial statements, this
item includes the following:
Director

Other related parties

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Royalty fees expense

–

–

227

185

Professional fee expense

7

11

–

–

Purchases of goods

–

–

3,451

3,716

In 2012, the Company acquired a 70% interest in DVC Valves (M) Sdn. Bhd. for $490,000 from the daughter
and sibling of Richard Koh Chye Heng and Koh Eddie respectively. See Note 26 for further details.
3.3

Key management compensation:

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

1,553

1,534

The above amounts are included under employee benefits expense. Included in the above amounts are
following items:
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

Remuneration of directors of the Company

680

593

Fees to directors of the Company

126

118

7

11

Fees to a firm in which a director is a member
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3.

Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Continued)
3.3

Key management compensation: (Continued)

Further information about the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the report on corporate
governance.
Key management personnel are directors and those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly. The above amounts for key
management compensation are for all the directors and other key management personnel.
3.4

Other receivables from and other payables to related parties:

The trade transactions and the trade receivables and payables balances arising from sales and purchases of
goods and services are disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the financial statements.
The movements in other receivables from and other payables to related parties are as follows:
Group

Director of a subsidiary
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

(159)

(103)

Other payables:
Balance at beginning of the year
Amounts paid out and settlement of liabilities on behalf of
a director of subsidiary
Amounts paid in and settlement of liabilities on behalf of the subsidiary
Other adjustments
Balance at end of the year (Note 25)
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–

(59)

146

–

1

3

(12)

(159)
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3.

Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Continued)
3.4

Other receivables from and other payables to related parties: (Continued)

Company

Subsidiaries
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

Balance at beginning of the year – net debit

4,363

5,333

Amounts paid out and settlement of liabilities on behalf of subsidiaries

2,441

1,630

Amounts paid in and settlement of liabilities on behalf of the Company

(3,064)

(2,600)

(210)

–

3,530

4,363

Other receivables:

Allowance for impairment – loss
Balance at end of the year – net debit
Related parties

Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

43

62

43

16

222

38

211

38

(1,005)

(57)

(1,005)

(11)

(740)

43

(751)

43

Other receivables:
Balance at beginning of the year
Amounts paid out and settlement of
liabilities on behalf of related parties
Amounts paid in and settlement of
liabilities on behalf of the Company
Balance at end of the year – net (credit)/debit
4.

Financial Information by Operating Segment

4A.

Information about Reportable Segment Profit or Loss, Assets and Liabilities
Disclosure of information about operating segments, products and services, the geographical areas, and the
major customers are made as required by FRS 108 Operating Segments. This disclosure standard has no
impact on the reported results or financial position of the Group.
For management purposes the Group is organised into the following major strategic operating segments
that offer different products and services: (1) Portable water, (2) Waste water, (3) NEWater, (4) Valves and
(5) Others. Such a structural organisation is determined by the nature of risks and returns associated with
each business segment and defines the management structure as well as the internal reporting system. It
represents the basis on which the management reports the primary segment information. They are managed
separately because each business requires different strategies.
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4.

Financial Information by Operating Segment (Continued)

4A.

Information about Reportable Segment Profit or Loss, Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
The segments and the types of products and services are as follows:
(1)

Portable water (“PW”) – Pipelines linking the raw water collection points to the water purification
plants, or the distribution pipelines bringing clean water supply to homes and industrial buildings;

(2)

Wastewater (“WW”) – Waste and sewer pipelines that channel the discharge of waste matter to
the wastewater treatment plants for treatment before it is discharged into the sea or routed to other
uses;

(3)

NEWater (“NW”) – Pipelines relating to NEWater treatment plants;

(4)

Valves (“VA”) – Valves for municipal and industrial applications; and

(5)

Others – Pipelines relating to oil and gas industry.

Segment results consist of costs directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis.
Inter-segment sales are measured on the basis that the entity actually used to price the transfers. Internal
transfer pricing policies of the Group are as far as practicable based on market prices. The accounting policies
of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.
The management reporting system evaluates performances based on a number of factors. However the
primary profitability measurement to evaluate segment’s operating results comprises two major financial
indicators: (1) earnings from operations before depreciation/amortisation, interests and income taxes (called
“Recurring EBITDA”) and (2) operating result before interests and income taxes and other unallocated items
(called “ORBIT”).
Segment assets consist principally of trade receivables that are directly attributable to a segment.
The following tables illustrate the information about the reportable segment profit or loss, assets and
liabilities.
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4.

Financial Information by Operating Segment (Continued)

4B.

Profit or Loss from Continuing Operations and Reconciliations
Business segments
PW

WW

NW

VA

Others

Unallocated

Group

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

17,215 17,603

930

1,809

928

2,803 18,450 11,914 10,686 16,452

–

– 48,209 50,581

3,238

323

478

212

–

–

Revenue by segment
External sales
Results:–
Segment result
Interest income
Finance costs

2,630

543

3,864

3,115

2,522

4,074

9,552 11,448

–

–

5

84

5

84

(56)

(63)

(200)

(218)

(256)

(281)

(114)

(159)

–

–

(114)

(159)

(98)

(95)

(886)

(859)

(984)

(954)

Amortisation of
intangible asset and
land use rights
Depreciation of
property, plant and
equipment
Employee benefits
expenses

(518)

(412) (7,197) (7,223) (7,715) (7,635)

Unallocated corporate
expenses
Other (charges)/credits

–

–

87

386

(2,797) (2,600) (2,797) (2,600)
(325)

157

(238)

543

–

–

(40)

(60)

(40)

(60)

Share of loss from
equity-accounted
joint ventures
(Loss) Profit before tax
Income tax expense

(2,587)

386

(113)

(257)

(2,700)

129

(Loss) Profit,
Net of Tax
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4.

Financial Information by Operating Segment (Continued)

4C.

Assets, Liabilities and Reconciliations
Business segments
PW

WW

NW

VA

Others

Unallocated

Group

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

6,743

5,990

310

1,103

227

486

6,834

4,731

6,110

4,923

703

387

464

6,307

7,000

6,694

7,464

31

640

4,920

3,266

4,951

3,906

Reportable segment
assets
Trade and other
receivables

2,110 20,927 19,343

Property, plant and
equipment
Cash and cash
equivalents
Others

–

– 16,450 15,004 16,450 15,004

Total assets

49,202 45,717

Reportable segment
liabilities
Trade and other
payables

1,803

2,497 10,176 12,507 11,979 15,004

Other financial
liabilities
Others

1,331
–

548 10,582
–

731

4,773 11,913
778

Total liabilities
Capital expenditure
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731

5,321
778

24,623 21,103
36

55

527

668

563

676
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4.

Financial Information by Operating Segment (Continued)

4D.

Geographical Information
Revenue
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

13,106

13,967

Hong Kong

1,746

2,055

Vietnam

2,757

6,597

China

5,329

3,065

Australia

1,632

3,129

–

1,668

6,659

3,945

Singapore

Cambodia
Europe
Indonesia

693

1,476

Malaysia

6,664

10,156

Brunei

5,858

174

Others

3,765

4,349

Subtotal for all foreign countries

35,103

36,614

Total

48,209

50,581

Non-current assets

Singapore
Hong Kong
China
Indonesia
Australia
Europe

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

2,922

2,971

3

2

4,021

4,174

1

–

1,216

1,737

948

900

Thailand

2

–

Malaysia

3,071

3,186

Subtotal for all foreign countries

9,262

9,999

12,184

12,970

Total

Revenues are attributed to countries on the basis of the customer’s location. The non-current assets are
analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located. The non-current assets exclude any
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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4.

Financial Information by Operating Segment (Continued)

4E.

Information About Major Customers
2013
$’000
Top 1 customer (in PW, NW and VA segments)

4,123

Top 2 customers (in PW and VA segments)

7,007
2012
$’000

5.

Top 1 customer (in PW and NW segments)

6,889

Top 2 customers (in PW, NW and VA segments)

8,935

Revenue
Group

Sale of goods
Amount recognised from construction contracts
Rental income
Commission income
Other income

76

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

44,150

44,152

3,886

5,760

98

120

5

113

70

436

48,209

50,581
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6.

Other Credits and (Other Charges)
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

Amortisation of intangible asset (Note 14B)

(54)

(116)

Amortisation of land use rights (Note 15)

(60)

(43)

–

(27)

166

(24)

42

10

Bad trade debts written off
Foreign exchange adjustment gains/(losses)
Government grant
Gain on bargain purchases

–

246

Loss on disposal of plant and equipment

(242)

–

Net allowance for impairment on trade receivables (Note 18)

(204)

(41)

Net allowance for inventories – reversal (Note 17)

–

(59)

Recharge of expenses incurred

–

11

Refund of shortfall of profits guarantee by vendor (Note 27)

–

427

(352)

384

Net
Presented in profit or loss as:

7.

Other Credits

208

694

Other Charges

(560)

(310)

Net

(352)

384

Marketing and Distribution Costs, Administrative Expenses
The major components include the following:
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

4,289

3,790

2,554

2,819

Marketing and Distribution Costs
Employee benefits expense (Note 8)
Administrative Expenses
Employee benefits expense (Note 8)
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8.

Employee Benefits Expense
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

6,917

6,339

Contributions to defined contribution plan

556

750

Other benefits

242

546

7,715

7,635

2,554

2,819

872

1,026

4,289

3,790

7,715

7,635

Employee benefits expense

Total employee benefits expense
The employee benefits expense is charged under:
Administrative expense
Cost of sales
Marketing and distribution costs

9.

Income Tax Expense

9A.

Components of tax expense recognised in profit or loss include:
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

133

481

(4)

50

129

531

Deferred tax income

(16)

(274)

Subtotal

(16)

(274)

Total income tax expense

113

257

Current tax expense:
Current tax expense
(Over)/Under adjustments to current tax in respect of prior periods
Subtotal
Deferred tax income:
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9.

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

9A.

Components of tax expense recognised in profit or loss include: (Continued)
The reconciliation of income taxes below is determined by applying the Singapore corporate tax rate. The
income tax in profit or loss varied from the amount of income tax amount determined by applying the
Singapore income tax rate of 17% (2012: 17%) to profit or loss before income tax as a result of the following
differences:
Group

(Loss) Profit Before Tax

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

(2,587)

386

40

60

(2,547)

446

Income tax (income) expense at the above rate

(433)

76

Effect of different tax rates in different countries

Add: Share of loss from equity-accounted joint ventures

(285)

40

Not deductible items

244

133

Deferred tax asset unrecognised

565

16

(Over)/under adjustments to tax in respect of prior periods

(4)

50

Others minor items less than 3% each

26

(58)

113

257

Total income tax expense
There are no income tax consequences of individuals to owners of the Company.
The tax effect of major not deductible items include the following:

Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

Gain on bargain purchases

–

(42)

Refund of shortfall of profits guarantee by vendor (Note 27)

–

(76)

167

162

19

20

Depreciation on non-qualifying plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible asset
Professional fees

–

14

Foreign-sourced interest income

–

(12)

Foreign exchange differences

13

23

Loss on disposal of plant and equipment

41

–

4

44

244

133

Other minor items
Net tax effect
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9.

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

9B.

Movements in deferred tax balance:
Group

Deferred tax liabilities from acquisition of subsidiary – intangible asset

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

–

30

122

27

Deferred tax liabilities from acquisition of subsidiary
– plant and equipment
Deferred income

–

147

Excess of net book value of property, plant and equipment

(99)

127

Tax loss carryforwards

566

(229)

Wear and tear allowances carryforwards

(18)

206

Tax loss carryforwards used in group relief
Provisions
Deferred tax assets unrecognised
Total deferred tax income recognised in profit or loss
9C.

–

(21)

10

3

(565)

(16)

16

274

Deferred tax balance in the statement of financial position:
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

(13)

(13)

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised in profit or loss:
Deferred tax liabilities from acquisition of subsidiary – intangible asset
Deferred tax liabilities from acquisition of business – plant and equipment
Deferred income
Excess of net book value of property, plant and equipment
Tax loss carryforwards
Wear and tear allowances carryforwards

–

(122)

147

147

(256)

(157)

738

172

–

18

70

60

(713)

(148)

(27)

(43)

(192)

(216)

Deferred tax assets

165

173

Net balance

(27)

(43)

Provisions
Deferred tax assets unrecognised
Net balance
Presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities
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9.

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

9C.

Deferred tax balance in the statement of financial position: (Continued)
Company
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

Excess of net book value of plant and equipment

(102)

(146)

Total deferred tax liabilities

(102)

(146)

167

100

–

16

Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred tax assets:
Tax loss carryforwards
Excess of tax values over net book value of plant and equipment
Provisions

57

60

(203)

(111)

Total deferred tax assets

21

65

Net deferred tax liabilities

(81)

(81)

Deferred tax assets unrecognised

It is impracticable to estimate the amount expected to be settled or used within one year.
The above deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the remaining balance, as the future
profit streams are not probable. The realisation of the future income tax benefits from tax loss carryforwards
and temporary differences from capital allowances is available for an unlimited future period subject to the
conditions imposed by law including the retention of majority shareholders as defined.
Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in subsidiaries and joint ventures are insignificant.
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10.

(Loss) Earnings Per Share
The following table illustrates the numerators and denominators used to calculate basic and diluted earnings
per share of no par value:
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

A. Numerator: (loss) earnings attributable to equity:
Continuing operations:
Total basic and diluted (loss) earnings attributable to equity holders

(1,622)

55

Basic

213,197

187,677

Diluted

213,197

214,003

B. Denominator: weighted average number of equity shares (’000)

The weighted average number of equity shares refers to shares in circulation during the reporting year.
The basic (loss) earnings per share ratio is based on the weighted average numbers of ordinary shares
outstanding during each reporting year.
As at 31 December 2013, there was no dilution of earnings per share as there were no warrants outstanding
as at reporting year and date. As at 31 December 2012, the dilutive effect was a result of warrants
outstanding as at reporting year end date (See Note 22).
The diluted (loss) earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive
ordinary share equivalents outstanding during each reporting year. The ordinary share equivalents included
in these calculations are: (1) the average number of ordinary shares assumed to be outstanding during the
reporting year and (2) shares of ordinary share issuable upon assumed exercise of warrants which would
have a dilutive effect.

82

PAN ASIAN
HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2013

11.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Leasehold

Plant and

properties

equipment

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

3,201

7,604

10,805

157

294

451

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 26)

–

212

212

Write off

–

(26)

(26)

(7)

(124)

(131)

3,351

7,960

11,311

Group
Cost:
At 1 January 2012
Additions

Foreign exchange adjustments
At 31 December 2012
Additions

29

534

563

Disposals

–

(413)

(413)

10

(56)

(46)

3,390

8,025

11,415

591

2,262

2,853

–

87

87

Foreign exchange adjustments
At 31 December 2013
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2012
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 26)
Depreciation for the year

128

826

954

Disposals

–

(26)

(26)

Foreign exchange adjustments

–

(21)

(21)

At 31 December 2012

719

3,128

3,847

Depreciation for the year

129

855

984

Disposals

–

(107)

(107)

Foreign exchange adjustments

–

(3)

(3)

848

3,873

4,721

At 1 January 2012

2,610

5,342

7,952

At 31 December 2012

2,632

4,832

7,464

At 31 December 2013

2,542

4,152

6,694

At 31 December 2013
Net book value:
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11.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
The depreciation expense is charged as follows:

Group
2013
2012

Cost of Sales
$’000

Marketing
and
Distribution
Cost
$’000

Administrative
Expenses
$’000

Total
$’000

259
448

138
107

587
399

984
954

Certain items are under finance lease agreements (see Note 24C).
Certain leasehold properties at a carrying value of approximately $131,000 (2012: $135,000) are mortgaged
(see Note 24A).
Properties include buildings in the course of construction with a cost of approximately $272,000 (2012: $256,000).
Leasehold
properties
$’000

Plant and
equipment
$’000

Total
$’000

Cost:
At 1 January 2012
Additions
Written off

2,936
16
–

2,530
24
(16)

5,466
40
(16)

At 31 December 2012
Additions

2,952
28

2,538
153

5,490
181

At 31 December 2013

2,980

2,691

5,671

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2012
Depreciation for the year
Written off

585
128
–

1,738
205
(16)

2,323
333
(16)

At 31 December 2012
Depreciation for the year

713
129

1,927
206

2,640
335

At 31 December 2013

842

2,133

2,975

Net book value:
At 1 January 2012

2,351

792

3,143

At 31 December 2012

2,239

611

2,850

At 31 December 2013

2,138

558

2,696

Company

Certain items are under finance lease agreements (see Note 24C).
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12.

Investments in Subsidiaries
Company

Cost at the beginning of the year
Additions

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

11,653

11,220

744

540

–

(107)

Disposal of investment

12,397

11,653

Allowance for impairment

(1,952)

(553)

Total at cost

10,445

11,100

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

Analysis of above amount denominated in non-functional currencies:
Australian Dollars

1,396

1,002

Chinese Renminbi

4,830

4,830

Hong Kong Dollars

586

586

Indonesian Rupiah

86

86

3,299

3,299

170

–

Malaysia Ringgit
Thai Baht
Movement in allowance for impairment:
Balance at beginning of the year

553

425

Impairment loss charge to profit or loss included in other charges

1,399

128

Balance at end of the year

1,952

553

11,027

11,657

Net book value of subsidiaries

During the reporting year ended 31 December 2013, W.D. Moore Pty Ltd (“WDM”) was placed under
liquidation. Accordingly, the cost of investment in WDM as at 31 December 2013 amounting to $1,002,000
was impaired in full. In addition, the decreasing performance of W.D.Moore (Asia) Pte. Ltd. (“WDMA”) and
PVT Engineering Sdn. Bhd. and its subsidiary (“PVT group”) was considered sufficient evidence to trigger
an impairment test, resulting in an impairment loss of $397,000 to write the cost of investment of WDMA
and PVT group down to its recoverable amount.
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12.

Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
The subsidiaries held by the Company and the Group are listed below:
Name of Subsidiaries, Country of Incorporation,
Place of Operations and Principal Activities and
(Independent Auditors)

Duvalco Valves and Fittings Pte. Ltd.

Effective percentage
Cost in books

of equity held

of Group

by Group

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

%

%

1,000

1,000

100

100

586

586

100

100

86

86

51

51

490

490

70

70

330

330

100

100

825

825

100

100

Singapore
General importers and exporters of valves and
investment holding
(RSM Chio Lim LLP)
Pan Asian Water Solutions (HK) Limited

(1)

Hong Kong
Supply of piping systems and related accessories
for use in water and wastewater infrastructure
developments
(RSM Nelson Wheeler)
PT. Pan Asian Water Solutions (1), (6)
Indonesia
Exporting and importing of products of water treatment
(RSM AAJ Associates)
DVC Valves (M) Sdn. Bhd.(2), (7)
Malaysia
General importers and exporters of valves
(Russ Ooi & Associates)
PA Water Solutions (Shanghai) Limited

(2)

People’s Republic of China
General importers and exporters of pipes and valves
(BDO Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants)
PA Asian HB Pte. Ltd.
Singapore
Selling and distribution of bolt and nuts for oil and
gas industry
(RSM Chio Lim LLP)
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12.

Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
Name of Subsidiaries, Country of Incorporation,
Place of Operations and Principal Activities and
(Independent Auditors)

PA Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (2)

Effective percentage
Cost in books

of equity held

of Group

by Group

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

%

%

211

211

100

100

4,500

4,500

100

100

2,598

2,598

60

60

1,002

1,002

51

51

–

–

100

100

25

25

76

76

Malaysia
General importers and exporters for pipes and valves
(Russ Ooi & Associates)
Pan Asian Manufacturing (Tianjin) Co. Limited

(1)

People’s Republic of China
Manufacturing and supply of pipes, fittings,
valves and other related accessories
(RSM China Certified Public Accountants)
PVT Engineering Sdn. Bhd.

(2)

Malaysia
Trading of engineering products as well as design,
supply and installation of pumping plants and
storage water tanks for water works application
(Crowe Horwath)
W.D. Moore Pty Ltd. (9)
Australia
Under liquidation
PA Airwater Pte. Ltd. (4)
Singapore
Process provider in water and wastewater treatment
as well as consultancy services and other water treatment
services (RSM Chio Lim LLP)
W.D.Moore (Asia) Pte. Ltd.

(8)

Singapore
General supply of windmill and solar-powered water
pumping systems (RSM Chio Lim LLP)
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12.

Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
Name of Subsidiaries, Country of Incorporation,
Place of Operations and Principal Activities and
(Independent Auditors)

PA Tech (Asia) Pte. Ltd.

Effective percentage
Cost in books

of equity held

of Group

by Group

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

%

%

180

–

60

–

170

–

80

–

394

–

100

–

12,397

11,653

1,006

–

100

100

1,487

1,487

60

60

Singapore
Supply marine and offshore products
(RSM Chio Lim LLP)
PA PTE (Thailand) Company Limited

(3), (5)

(Incorporated on 2 April 2013)
Thailand
Exporting and importing of water treatment products
W.D. Moore (2013) Pty Ltd

(3), (5)

(Incorporated on 27 June 2013)
Australia
Supply of windmill and solar-powered water
pumping systems
Total in the books of the Company
Held by Duvalco Valves and Fittings Pte. Ltd.
Duvalco B.V. (1), (10)
Netherlands
Manufacturing of valves and fittings
(RSM Tempelman)
Duvalco Valves (Tianjin) Co. Limited

(1)

People’s Republic of China
Manufacturing of valves and fittings
(RSM China Certified Public Accountants)
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12.

Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
Name of Subsidiaries, Country of Incorporation,
Place of Operations and Principal Activities and
(Independent Auditors)

Effective percentage
Cost in books

of equity held

of Group

by Group

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

%

%

59

59

60

36

43

43

60

60

55

55

55

55

Held by Duvalco Valves (Tianjin) Co. Limited
Shanghai Ji Xin Flow Control Co. Limited

(1), (11)

People’s Republic of China
Supply of piping systems for use in water and
wastewater infrastructure developments,
and marine and industrial applications
(RSM China Certified Public Accountants)
Held by PVT Engineering Sdn. Bhd.
GLS Tanks Sdn. Bhd. (2)
Malaysia
Trading of engineering products as well as design,
supply and installation of pumping plants and
storage water tanks for water works application
(Crowe Horwath)
Held by PA Water Solutions (Shanghai) Limited
Pan Asian (Tianjin) Industrial and Trading Co. Ltd.

(3)

People’s Republic of China
Supply of valves and piping systems,
and related accessories
(1)

Audited by member firms of RSM International of which RSM Chio Lim LLP in Singapore is a member.

(2)

Other independent auditors. Audited by firms of accountants other than member firms of RSM International of
which RSM Chio Lim LLP in Singapore is a member.

(3)

Not audited as it is immaterial. The unaudited management financial statements at 31 December 2013 have been
used for consolidation purposes.
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12.

Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
(4)

Cost of investment is less than $1,000.

(5)

The subsidiaries were incorporated at the date shown.

(6)

In 2012, an interest of 49% in PT. Pan Asian Water Solutions (“PTPA”) was disposed for a consideration of $60,000.
This reduced the equity interest from 100% to 51%. The amount of $60,000 representing the proportionate share
of the carrying amount of the net assets of PTPA was transferred to non-controlling interests. The difference
between the increase in the non-controlling interests and the consideration received being the loss on disposal
of $22,000 was accounted as an equity transaction as there was no loss of control in the subsidiary.

(7)

Acquired on 17 February 2012. See Note 26 for details.

(8)

51% held by the Company, and 49% held by W.D. Moore Pty Ltd, a 51% owned subsidiary of the Group (see (9)
below).

(9)

On 11 July 2013, W.D. Moore Pty Ltd (“WDM”) was placed under liquidation. Accordingly, the cost of investment
in WDM as at 31 December 2013 amounting to $1,002,000 was impaired in full. Since WDM is under liquidation,
an audit is not required by way of local jurisdiction.

(10)

During the reporting year, additional capital amounting to €590,000 (approximately $1,006,000) was injected
into Duvalco B.V. by Duvalco Valves and Fittings Pte. Ltd. (“DVF”). The investment amount was financed by the
Company through a loan receivable from DVF of the same amount.

(11)

During the reporting year, Shanghai Ji Xin Flow Control Co. Limited (“SHJX”) bought back RMB200,000
(approximately S$38,000) of its share capital, representing its non-controlling interest of 40%. As at the end of
the reporting year, the Group’s effective interest increased from 36% to 60% without a change in the Group’s
cost of investment.

As required by Rule 716 of the Catalist Listing Manual of The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, the Audit Committee and the board of directors of the Company have satisfied themselves that the
appointment of different auditors for certain of its overseas subsidiaries would not compromise the standard
and effectiveness of the audit of the Group.
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13.

Investments in Joint Ventures
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Movements in carrying value:
At 1 January

100

60

105

49

50

100

–

100

–

–

–

(44)

Share of loss for the year

(40)

(60)

–

–

At 31 December

110

100

105

105

198

149

149

149

Additions
Impairment loss charge to profit or loss
included in other charges

Carrying value:
Unquoted equity share at cost
Allowance for impairment
Share of post-acquisition loss

Share of net book value of joint ventures

–

–

(44)

(44)

(88)

(49)

–

–

110

100

105

105

114

100

100

100

63

–

–

–

Analysis of above amount denominated
in non-functional currency
Sterling Pound

The joint ventures held by the Company and the Group are listed below:
Name of Joint Ventures, Country of Incorporation,
Place of Operations and Principal Activities and
(Independent Auditors)

Franklin Hodge (Asia) Pte. Ltd.

Percentage of equity
held by the Group
2013

2012

%

%

50

50

50

50

Singapore
Trading and manufacturing of engineering products and
water work application
(RSM Chio Lim LLP)
S-Two Asia Pte. Ltd.

(2)

Singapore
Explore market opportunities in marine and offshore industry
(RSM Chio Lim LLP)
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13.

Investments in Joint Ventures (Continued)
Name of Joint Ventures, Country of Incorporation,
Place of Operations and Principal Activities and
(Independent Auditors)

Duvalco Controls Co. Ltd.

Percentage of equity
held by the Group

(4)

2013

2012

%

%

49

49

50

–

Thailand
Supply of piping systems, water tank system and related accessories
Duvalco UK Ltd.

(1), (3)

United Kingdom
Selling valves and pipes within United Kingdom

92

(1)

On 1 November 2013, Duvalco Valves & Fittings Pte. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a joint venture agreement with VIP-Polymers Limited to acquire a 50:50 owned joint venture company in United
Kingdom to sell valves and pipes within the United Kingdom. Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, Duvalco
UK Ltd issued 50,000 new shares at £1 per share. The Company and VIP-Polymers Limited subscribed 25,000
shares each, amounting to a cost of investment of approximately S$50,000 each.

(2)

In 2012, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement with S-Two GMBH & Co. KG (“S-Two”) to incorporate
a 50:50 owned joint venture company in Singapore to explore market opportunities in marine and offshore industry.
Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, S-Two Asia Pte. Ltd. was incorporated on 3 May 2012 with a paid-up
share capital of $200,000. The Company and S-Two subscribed 100,000 shares each at a consideration of $1 per
share.

(3)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s share of post-acquisition gain of Duvalco UK Ltd. amounted to $16,000
(2012: Nil). The unaudited financial statements at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 of the entity have
been used for equity accounting purposes.

(4)

Not audited as it is immaterial. The unaudited management financial statements at 31 December 2013 have been
used for consolidation purposes. The cost of investment was fully provided for in the reporting year ended 31
December 2012.
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13.

Investments in Joint Ventures (Continued)
The summarised financial information of the joint ventures, not adjusted for the percentage ownership held
by the Group is as follows:
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

Assets

1,300

926

Liabilities

1,066

727

Revenue

1,071

449

(80)

(119)

Loss for the year

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the joint ventures to transfer funds to the Group in the
form of cash dividends.
14.

Intangible Assets
Group

Goodwill (Note 14A)
Other intangible assets (Note 14B)
Total

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

2,456

2,456

–

54

2,456

2,510

14A. Goodwill
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

2,456

2,109

–

347

2,456

2,456

Cost:
Balance at beginning of the year
Arising from acquisition of subsidiary (Note 26)
Balance at end of the year
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14.

Intangible Assets (Continued)

14A. Goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. Each of those cashgenerating units represents the Group’s investment by each subsidiary as follows:
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

2,109

2,109

347

347

2,456

2,456

Name of subsidiary:
PVT Engineering Sdn. Bhd. and its subsidiary
DVC Valves (M) Sdn. Bhd.

PVT Engineering Sdn. Bhd. and its subsidiary
The goodwill for PVT Engineering Sdn. Bhd. and its subsidiary was tested for impairment at the end of
the reporting year. An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset or a cashgenerating unit (“CGU”) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cashgenerating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell or its value in use. The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units have been determined based on its value in use method.
The value in use was measured by management using a discounted cash flow model covering a five years
method of the CGU. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates, visible success rates of sales projects and direct costs during the period. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes
in the market.
The Group derives its five year cash flow forecasts from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management, taking into consideration confirmed and probable projects for the next two years (FY2014
and FY2015). Cash flow projections for the next three years are estimated based on projected revenues of
FY2015 at a growth rate of 0% (2012: 0%). A terminal growth rate of 3% (2012: 3%) was used. The terminal
growth rate does not exceed the long-term growth rate of the sector. The value in use is a recurring fair
value measurement (Level 3). A discount rate of 15.4% (2012: 19.4%) representing the subsidiary’s weighted
average cost of capital was used to discount the forecast cash flow.
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14.

Intangible Assets (Continued)

14A. Goodwill (Continued)
Based on the value in use assessment (Level 3) performed, no impairment charge was recognised because
there was no significant difference between the carrying amount of the CGU and its recoverable amount.
If a post-tax discount rate of 16.0% was used (which is 0.6% higher than management’s estimates), an
impairment of $379,000 would have been recognised. If a terminal growth rate of 2% was used (which is
1% lower than the management’s estimates), an impairment of $312,000 would have been recognised.
DVC Valves (M) Sdn. Bhd.
The goodwill for DVC Valves (M) Sdn. Bhd. was not tested by management for impairment at the end of the
reporting year as it was assessed not to be material.
14B.

Other Intangible Assets
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

597

597

543

427

54

116

597

543

54

170

–

54

Cost:
At beginning and end of the year
Accumulated Amortisation:
At beginning of the year
Amortisation for the year charged under other charges (Note 6)
At the end of the year
Net book value:
At beginning of the year
At end of the year
Other intangible assets consist of order backlog.
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15.

Land Use Rights
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

2,852

2,852

72

–

2,924

2,852

At beginning of the year

43

–

Amortisation for the year charged under other charges (Note 6)

60

43

103

43

At beginning of the year

2,809

2,852

At end of the year

2,821

2,809

Cost:
At beginning of the year
Foreign exchange adjustments
At the end of the year
Accumulated Amortisation:

At the end of the year
Net book value:

The land use rights are for a piece of land situated in the People’s Republic of China. The land use rights
expire in year 2060 and are not transferable. Certain commitments in relation to the land use rights are
disclosed under Note 29.
16.

Other Assets, Non-Current
Group

Club memberships at cost

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

105

89

105

89

(2)

(2)

(2)

(2)

103

87

103

87

Balance at beginning of the year

2

2

2

2

Balance at end of the year

2

2

2

2

Less allowance for impairment

Movement in allowance:
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16.

Other Assets, Non-Current (Continued)
The above club memberships are held in trust by certain directors and employees.
The carrying value of club memberships is at cost. The fair value of the club memberships is deemed to be
not reliably measurable as the probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed as used in estimating fair values. Consequently it is carried at cost less provision for impairment.

17.

Inventories
Group

Finished goods and goods for resale

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

7,648

6,952

4,036

2,685

393

339

302

293

–

59

(9)

9

(2)

(5)

–

–

391

393

293

302

(696)

(2,681)

35,918

34,959

Inventories are stated after allowance.
Movements in allowance:
Balance at beginning of the year
Charge (reversed) to profit or loss included
in other charges (credits) (Note 6)
Foreign exchange adjustments
Balance at end of the year
Changes in inventories of
finished goods (increase)
Cost of inventories sold recognised
in cost of sales

Certain inventories are pledged as security for trust receipts (see Note 24A).
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18.

Trade and Other Receivables
Group

Company
2013
2012
$’000
$’000

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

20,140
(234)
–

16,757
(40)
–

8,793
(97)
3,390

8,795
–
2,778

318

516

208

303

20,224

17,233

12,294

11,876

Other receivables:
Subsidiaries (Note 3) (a)
Less allowance for impairment
Related parties (Note 3)
Tax recoverable
Outside parties

–
–
23
239
441

–
–
43
128
1,939

4,709
(437)
12
–
89

5,296
(227)
43
–
1,613

Subtotal

703

2,110

4,373

6,725

20,927

19,343

16,667

18,601

Trade receivables:
Outside parties
Less allowance for impairment
Subsidiaries (Note 3)
Related parties (Note 3)
Subtotal

Total trade and other receivables
Movements in above allowance:
Balance at beginning of year
Net allowance for trade receivables to
profit or loss included in other charges
(Note 6)
Amount utilised against allowance
Foreign exchange adjustments

40

33

227

260

204
–
(10)

41
(33)
(1)

307
–
–

–
(33)
–

Balance at end of year

234

40

534

227

(a)

The amount include loans to subsidiaries:
(i)

Loans totalling $2,837,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012: $30,000), which are unsecured,
with a tenure of 6 months and subject to automatic rollover, and carry an interest at 5% (2012:
5%) per annum payable upon repayment of the loans. The carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value (Level 3). The amount was not past due.

(ii)

A loan of $NIL (2012: $393,000 (AUD 300,000)) is secured by a charge over all of the present
and future undertaking, assets and rights of the subsidiary, with a term of not more than 5
years, and carries an interest at 3% per annum payable monthly in arrears. The Company is
entitled in its absolute discretion and at any time on or before the repayment date, to convert
the loan into equity of the subsidiary on the terms to be set out in the conversion notice served
by the Company. The directors considered the fair value of the derivative instrument to be
insignificant in view of the gain on bargain purchase.
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19.

Other Assets, Current
Group

Prepayments
Deposits to secure services

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

3,057

2,236

936

449

90

137

16

20

3,147

2,373

952

469

Prepayments of the Group include a deposit of $1,654,000 (2012: $1,557,000) paid to a contractor to
construct plant and equipment. See further details in Note 29.
20.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Group

Not restricted in use

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

4,951

3,906

2,328

937

The interest earning balances are not significant.
20A. Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows:
Group

Amount as shown above
Bank overdrafts (Note 24A)

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

4,951

3,906

(1,020)

(790)

3,931

3,116

Cash and cash equivalents for statement of cash flows purposes
at end of the year
20B.

Non-Cash Transactions:
During the reporting year there were acquisitions of plant and equipment with a total cost of approximately
$NIL (2012: $45,000) acquired by means of finance leases.
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21.

Share Capital
Number of

Share

shares issued

capital

’000

$’000

Group and Company
Ordinary shares of no par value:
Balance at beginning of the year 1 January 2012
Issue of shares by virtue of exercise of warrants at $0.08 each (Note 22)
Balance at end of the year 31 December 2012
Issue of shares by virtue of exercise of warrants at $0.08 each (Note 22)
Balance at end of the year 31 December 2013

187,625

13,174

251

20

187,876

13,194

26,326

2,106

214,202

15,300

The ordinary shares of no par value which are fully paid carry no right to fixed income.
There were no share warrants outstanding at the end of the reporting year (2012: 62,124,000) (Note 22).
Capital Management:
In order to maintain its listing on the Singapore Stock Exchange it has to have share capital with at least a
free float of at least 10% of the shares. The Company met the capital requirement on its initial listing and
the rules limiting treasury share purchases mean it will automatically continue to satisfy that requirement,
as it did throughout the year. Management receives a report from the registrars frequently on substantial
share interests showing the non-free float and it demonstrated continuing compliance with the 10% limit
throughout the year.
The objectives when managing capital are: to safeguard the reporting entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for owners and benefits for other stakeholders, and
to provide an adequate return to owners by pricing the sales commensurately with the level of risk. The
management sets the amount of capital to meet its requirements and the risk taken. There were no changes
in the approach to capital management during the reporting year. The management manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it where necessary or possible in the light of changes in conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the management may adjust the amount of dividends paid to owners, return capital to owners, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (that is, share
capital and reserves).
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21.

Share Capital (Continued)
Capital Management: (Continued)
The management monitors the capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt/net capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital and retained earnings).
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

Net debt:
All current and non-current borrowings including finance leases

11,913

5,321

Less: cash and cash equivalents

(4,951)

(3,906)

6,962

1,415

Total equity

24,399

24,614

Adjusted capital

24,399

24,614

28.53%

5.75%

Net debt
Adjusted capital:

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio

The unfavourable change as shown by the increase in the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio for the reporting year
resulted primarily from the increase in borrowings in the reporting year ended 31 December 2013. There
was also an unfavourable change with decreased retained earnings.
22.

Share Warrants
On 3 January 2011, the Company made a renounceable non-underwritten rights issues of up to 62,500,000
new ordinary shares in the capital of the Company at an issue price of $0.07 for each rights share on the
basis of one rights share for every two existing ordinary shares held by entitled shareholders and up to
62,500,000 free detachable warrants. Each warrant carries the right to subscribe for one new ordinary share
in the capital of the Company at an exercise price of $0.08 for each new share, on the basis of one warrant
for every one rights share subscribed.
During the reporting year ended 31 December 2013, an aggregate of 26,326,000 (2012: 251,000) new
ordinary shares were issued by virtue of the exercise of 26,326,000 (2012: 251,000) warrants at the stated
exercise price.
A total of 35,798,000 warrants expired on 11 January 2013. At the end of the reporting year 31 December
2013, no warrants were outstanding.
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23.

Other Reserves
Group
2013

2012

$’000

$’000

(64)

(319)

Statutory reserves (Note 23B)

82

82

Total at the end of the year

18

(237)

Foreign currency translation reserve (Note 23A)

23A. Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Group

At beginning of the year

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

(319)

(159)

Exchange differences on translating foreign subsidiaries

255

(160)

At end of the year

(64)

(319)

The currency translation reserve accumulates all foreign exchange differences.
23B.

Statutory Reserves
Group

At beginning of the year and end of the year

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

82

82

A subsidiary incorporated in the PRC is required by the relevant PRC regulations and the articles of association
to appropriate, where applicable, certain percentage of profit after taxation (after offsetting all recognised tax
losses carried forward from previous financial years) arrived at in accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC and Company’s articles of association each year to statutory reserves. The appropriation to statutory
reserves must be made before distribution of dividends to shareholders. Subject to certain restrictions, part
of the reserve may be converted to increase share capital or be used to make up losses. These statutory
reserves are not distributable in the form of cash dividends.
All reserves classified on the face of the statement of financial position as retained earnings represents
past accumulated earnings and are distributable as cash dividends. The other reserves are not available for
cash dividends unless realised.
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24.

Other Financial Liabilities
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Non-current:
Finance leases (Note 24C)

196

200

16

49

Non-current, total

196

200

16

49

3,463

3,075

1,762

2,476

7,151

1,148

6,710

1,148

Current:
Bank loans (Note 24B)
Trust receipts for purchase of inventories
(Note 24A)
Finance leases (Note 24C)

83

108

33

69

1,020

790

–

431

Current, total

11,717

5,121

8,505

4,124

Total

11,913

5,321

8,521

4,173

196

200

16

49

Bank overdrafts (Note 24A)

The non-current portion is repayable
as follows:
Due within two to five years

All the amounts are at floating interest rates except for finance leases that are on fixed interest rates (see
Note 24C). The range of floating rate interest rates paid were as follows:
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

%

%

%

%

Bank loans

2.14 – 7.80

2.06 – 8.05

2.14 – 2.66

2.06 – 5.00

Bank overdrafts

5.00 – 8.10

5.00 – 8.10

5.00

5.00

Trust receipts for purchase of inventories

1.50 – 5.50

1.95 – 3.25

1.50 – 5.50

1.95 – 3.25

The exposure of the borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of
the reporting years are below six months (2012: six months).
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24.

Other Financial Liabilities (Continued)

24A. Bank Overdraft and Trust Receipts for Purchase of Inventories
The trust receipts are covered by a first legal charge on certain inventories.
The bank overdraft of the Company as at 31 December 2013 is unsecured. Certain bank overdrafts of a
subsidiary as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are secured and covered by:

24B.

a.

Corporate guarantees from the Company and certain directors of a subsidiary; and

b.

First party charge on a subsidiary’s office building.

Bank Loans
The bank loans agreements as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are secured and covered by:
a.

A negative pledge over the assets of the Company;

b.

Corporate guarantee from the Company; and

c.

Personal guarantee from certain directors of a subsidiary.

The loan agreements include covenants that require the maintenance of certain financial ratios. Any noncompliance with these covenants will result in these loans or other credit facilities becoming repayable
immediately upon service of a notice of default by the lenders.
During the reporting year, a subsidiary breached a loan agreement covenant in relation to its short-term bank
loans and overdraft balances amounting to RM3,075,000 (approximately $1,186,000) as at 31 December 2013.
As these bank loans and overdraft balances were current in nature there is no need for any reclassification
from non-current in the accounts. The lender concerned has not made a demand for accelerated repayment
as of the date of this report.
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24.

Other Financial Liabilities (Continued)

24C.

Finance Leases
Group
Minimum
payments
$’000

Finance
charges
$’000

Present value
$’000

Minimum lease payments payable:
Due within one year
Due within two to five years

100
219

(17)
(23)

83
196

Total

319

(40)

279

Minimum lease payments payable:
Due within one year
Due within two to five years

127
223

(19)
(23)

108
200

Total

350

(42)

308

2013

2012

Company
2013

Minimum
payments
$’000

Finance
charges
$’000

Present value
$’000

Minimum lease payments payable:
Due within one year
Due within two to five years

38
20

(5)
(4)

33
16

Total

58

(9)

49

79
58

(10)
(9)

69
49

137

(19)

118

2012
Minimum lease payments payable:
Due within one year
Due within two to five years
Total

Net book value of plant and equipment under finance leases of the Group and the Company amounted to
$247,000 (2012: $420,011) and $46,000 (2012: $130,516) respectively at the end of the reporting year.
It is a policy to lease certain of its plant and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is
three to five years. For the reporting year ended 31 December 2013, the rate of interest for finance leases
ranges from 2.5% to 3.35% (2012: 2.5% to 3.35%) per year. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments. The obligations under finance leases
are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets and a personal guarantee from a director of the
Company. The carrying amount of the lease liabilities is not significantly different from the fair value (Level 2).
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25.

Trade and Other Payables
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Trade payables:
Outside parties and accrued liabilities
Related parties (Note 3)
Subsidiaries (Note 3)
Subtotal

9,086

12,776

2,127

7,295

494
–

482

164

360

–

1,781

784

9,580

13,258

4,072

8,439

725

735

1

145

12

159

–

–

763

–

763

–

Other payables:
Outside parties
Director of subsidiary (Note 3)
Related parties (Note 3)
Subsidiaries (Note 3)

(a)

Advances received from customers
Subtotal
Total trade and other payables
(a)

26.

–

–

742

706

899

852

3

–

2,399

1,746

1,509

851

11,979

15,004

5,581

9,290

Includes a loan from a subsidiary amounting to $470,000 (2012: $450,000). The loan is unsecured, with a tenure
of 6 months and subject to automatic rollover, and carries an interest at 5% (2012: 5%) per annum payable upon
repayment of the loan.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries
On 17 February 2012, the Group acquired 350,000 ordinary shares in the capital of DVC Valves (M) Sdn. Bhd.
(“DVC”) (incorporated in Malaysia), representing 70% of the issued share capital of DVC for a consideration
of MYR1,200,000 (approximately $490,000). The transaction was accounted for by the purchase method of
accounting.
The rationale for the Group’s acquisition of DVC is to tap on DVC’s extensive experience in specialised valves
to support the Group’s engineering projects in Malaysia.
DVC was acquired from a related party and has been reported as an interested person transaction (as defined
in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of SGX).
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26.

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)
The details of the acquisition are as follows:
$’000
Fair value at acquisition
Cash and cash equivalent
Plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables

1
125
201

Other payables
Inventories

(243)
118

Non-controlling interests
Goodwill (Note 14A)

202
(59)
347

Consideration

490

The contribution from the acquired subsidiary for the period between the date of acquisition in 2012 and
the end of the reporting year 31 December 2012 was as follows:
Group
From date of
For the
acquisition
reporting
in 2012
year 2012
$’000
$’000
Revenue
Profit before income tax
27.

1,126
112

1,228
122

Profit Guarantee Refund
The Group acquired 60% of PVT Engineering Sdn. Bhd. and subsidiary, GLS Tanks Sdn. Bhd. (collectively
“PVT group”) on 1 July 2010. Pursuant to the shares sale and purchase agreement entered into on 7 June
2010, the vendors warrant that the cumulative profit before tax of PVT group for the financial years ending
30 June 2011 and 2012 shall be MYR5,000,000 (approximately $2,049,000) (“profit target”). Based on
the profit target, the Group agreed to pay the maximum purchase price of MYR6,000,000 (approximately
$2,598,000) provided the cumulative profits before tax of PVT group for the both financial years exceeds
the profit target. In the event the profit target is not met, the actual purchase price shall be adjusted upon
the determination of the actual average profit before tax of PVT group according to the formula stipulated in
the agreement. In any case, the minimum purchase price shall be MYR1,200,000 (approximately $492,000).
In 2012, the vendors of PVT group refunded MYR1,067,000 (approximately $427,000) to the Group being the
estimated shortfall in the profit before tax of PVT group for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 from the
profit target. This amount was taken up as other credit in accordance with FRS103 Business Combination
as an event occurring after the acquisition date.
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28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks

28A. Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The following table summarises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end
of the reporting year by FRS 39 categories:
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

4,951

3,906

2,328

937

Loans and receivables

20,927

19,343

16,667

18,601

At end of the year

25,878

23,249

18,995

19,538

Financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

11,913

5,321

8,521

4,173

Trade and other payables at amortised cost

11,979

15,004

5,581

9,290

At end of the year

23,892

20,325

14,102

13,463

Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.
28B.

Financial Risk Management
The main purpose for holding or issuing financial instruments is to raise and manage the finances for
the entity’s operating, investing and financing activities. The main risks arising from the entity’s financial
instruments are credit risk, interest risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and market price risk comprising
interest rate and currency risk exposures. Management has certain practices for the management of financial
risks. The guidelines set up the short and long term objectives and action to be taken in order to manage
the financial risks. The guidelines include the following:
1.
2.

Minimise interest rate, currency, credit and market risk for all kinds of transactions.
Maximise the use of “natural hedge”: favouring as much as possible the natural off-setting of sales and
costs and payables and receivables denominated in the same currency and therefore put in place hedging
strategies only for the excess balance. The same strategy is pursued with regard to interest rate risk.

3.

All financial risk management activities are carried out and monitored by senior management staff.

4.

All financial risk management activities are carried out following good market practices.

5.

When appropriate consideration is given to investing in shares or similar instruments.

6.

When appropriate consideration is given to entering into derivatives or any other similar instruments
solely for hedging purposes.

There have been no changes to the exposures to risk; the objectives, policies and processes for managing
the risk and the methods used to measure the risk.
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28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Continued)

28C.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The analyses of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. These include both
the significant financial instruments stated at amortised cost and at fair value in the statement of financial
position. The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the shortterm maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount
of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value.

28D. Credit Risk on Financial Assets
Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by counterparties
to discharge their obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of cash balances with banks,
cash equivalents and receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk is: the total of the fair value of the
financial instruments; the maximum amount of the entity could have to pay if the guarantee is called on;
and a full amount of any loan payable commitment at the end of the reporting year. Credit risk on cash
balances with banks is limited because the counter-parties are entities with acceptable credit. For credit risk
on receivables an ongoing credit evaluation is performed of the financial condition of the debtors and a loss
from impairment is recognised in profit or loss. The exposure to credit risk is controlled by setting limits on
the exposure to individual customers and these are disseminated to the relevant persons concerned and
compliance is monitored by management. There is no significant concentration of credit risk, as the exposure
is spread over a large number of counter-parties and customers unless otherwise disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.
Note 20 discloses the maturity of cash and cash equivalent balances.
As part of the process of setting customer credit limits, different credit terms are used. The average credit
period generally granted to trade receivable customers is about 60 to 90 days (2012: 60 to 90 days). But
some customers take a longer period to settle the amounts.
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28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Continued)

28D. Credit Risk on Financial Assets (Continued)
(a)

Ageing analysis of the age of trade receivable amounts that are past due as at the end of reporting
year but not impaired:
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Trade receivables:
31-60 days

3,066

4,331

61-90 days

1,260

91-120 days

1,880

Over 120 days
Total
(b)

1,769

3,205

2,541

859

1,872

1,616

1,571

1,611

4,845

2,979

3,432

2,183

11,051

11,467

7,631

8,871

Ageing analysis as at the end of reporting year of trade receivable amounts that are impaired:
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Trade receivables:
91-120 days
Over 120 days

71

–

71

–

163

40

26

–

The allowance is based on individual accounts that are determined to be impaired at the year end
date. These are not secured.
Concentration of trade receivable customers as at the end of reporting year:
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Top 1 customer

1,626

2,471

2,892

2,471

Top 2 customers

3,222

4,038

4,518

4,038

Other receivables are normally with no fixed terms and therefore there is no maturity.
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28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Continued)

28E.

Liquidity Risk
The following table analyses the non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity
(contractual and undiscounted cash flows).

Group

Less than

One to

one year

five years

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

Non-derivative financial liabilities:
2013:
Other financial liabilities

11,734

219

11,953

Trade and other payables

11,979

–

11,979

At end of the year

23,713

219

23,932

2012:
Other financial liabilities

5,140

223

5,363

Trade and other payables

15,004

–

15,004

At end of the year

20,144

223

20,367

Other financial liabilities

8,510

20

8,530

Trade and other payables

5,581

–

5,581

14,091

20

14,111

Other financial liabilities

4,134

58

4,192

Trade and other payables

9,290

–

9,290

13,424

58

13,482

Company
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
2013:

At end of the year
2012:

At end of the year
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28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Continued)

28E.

Liquidity Risk (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts – For financial guarantee contracts the maximum earliest period in which the
guarantee could be called is used. At the end of the reporting year no claims on the financial guarantees are
expected. The following table shows the maturity analysis of the contingent liabilities:
Less than
Company

one year

Total

$’000

$’000

3,059

3,059

3,062

3,062

2013:
Financial guarantee contracts – in favour of certain subsidiaries (Note 3)
2012:
Financial guarantee contracts – in favour of certain subsidiaries (Note 3)

The liquidity risk refers to the difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. It is expected that all the liabilities will be paid at their
contractual maturity. The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 60 days (2012: 60
days). The other payables are with short-term durations. The classification of the financial assets is shown in
the statement of financial position as they may be available to meet liquidity needs and no further analysis
is deemed necessary.
28F.

Interest Rate Risk
The interest rate risk exposure is mainly from changes in fixed rate and floating interest rates. The following
table analyses the breakdown of the significant financial instruments by type of interest rate:
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Financial liabilities:
Fixed rate

279

308

49

118

Floating rate

11,634

5,013

8,472

4,055

At end of the year

11,913

5,321

8,521

4,173

The floating rate debt obligations are with interest rates that are re-set regularly at one, three or six month
intervals. The interest rates are disclosed in the respective notes.
Sensitivity analysis: The effect on pre-tax profit is not significant.
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28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Continued)

28G. Foreign Currency Risks
Analysis of amounts denominated in non-functional currency:
Hong
US

Japanese Sterling

Kong

Malaysia

Dollars

Yen

Pound

Dollar

Euro

Ringgit

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Cash

1,911

4

29

–

138

1

2,083

Receivables

3,586

–

239

–

174

–

3,999

Total financial assets

5,497

4

268

–

312

1

6,082

Group
2013:
Financial assets:

Hong
US

Japanese Sterling

Kong

Malaysia

Dollars

Yen

Pound

Dollar

Euro

Ringgit

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Borrowings

4,060

–

–

–

–

–

4,060

Payables

1,984

–

171

–

531

–

2,686

Total financial liabilities

6,044

–

171

–

531

–

6,746

(547)

4

97

–

(219)

1

(664)

Group
2013:
Financial liabilities:

Net financial (liabilities)/
assets at end of the year
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28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Continued)

28G. Foreign Currency Risks (Continued)
Hong
US

Japanese Sterling

Kong

Malaysia

Dollars

Yen

Pound

Dollar

Euro

Ringgit

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

211

5

68

–

255

77

616

Receivables

4,492

–

1,001

–

148

505

6,146

Total financial assets

4,703

5

1,069

–

403

582

6,762

Group
2012:
Financial assets:
Cash

Hong
US

Japanese Sterling

Kong

Malaysia

Dollars

Yen

Pound

Dollar

Euro

Ringgit

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Group
2012:
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings

1,147

–

–

–

–

–

1,147

Payables

4,437

1

526

–

162

–

5,126

Total financial liabilities

5,584

1

526

–

162

–

6,273

(881)

4

543

–

241

582

489

Net financial assets/(liabilities)
at end of the year

114

PAN ASIAN
HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2013

28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Continued)

28G. Foreign Currency Risks (Continued)
US

Japanese

Sterling

Australian

Malaysia

Indonesia

Dollars

Yen

Pound

Euro

Dollar

Ringgit

Rupiah

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Cash

1,504

4

19

19

–

1

–

1,547

Receivables

3,292

–

264

3,307

479

288

–

7,630

Total financial assets

4,796

4

283

3,326

479

289

–

9,177

Company
2013:
Financial assets:

US

Japanese

Sterling

Australian

Malaysia

Indonesia

Dollars

Yen

Pound

$’000

$’000

$’000

Euro

Dollar

Ringgit

Rupiah

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Borrowings

4,060

–

–

–

–

–

–

4,060

Payables

1,999

–

163

280

–

31

16

2,489

Total financial liabilities

6,059

–

163

280

–

31

16

6,549

(1,263)

4

120

3,046

479

258

(16)

2,628

Company
2013:
Financial liabilities:

Net financial assets/
(liabilities) at end
of the year
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28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Continued)

28G. Foreign Currency Risks (Continued)
US

Japanese

Sterling

Australian

Malaysia

Indonesia

Dollars

Yen

Pound

Euro

Dollar

Ringgit

Rupiah

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Company
2012:
Financial assets:
Cash

111

5

59

255

–

77

–

507

Receivables

4,481

–

1,009

3,336

412

957

–

10,195

Total financial assets

4,592

5

1,068

3,591

412

1,034

–

10,702

US

Japanese

Sterling

Australian

Malaysia

Indonesia

Dollars

Yen

Pound

$’000

$’000

$’000

Euro

Dollar

Ringgit

Rupiah

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Borrowings

1,147

–

–

–

–

–

–

1,147

Payables

4,452

1

499

277

–

72

19

5,320

Total financial liabilities

5,599

1

499

277

–

72

19

6,467

(1,007)

4

569

3,314

412

962

(19)

4,235

Company
2012:
Financial liabilities:

Net financial assets/
(liabilities) at end
of the year

There is exposure to foreign currency risk as part of its normal business.
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28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Continued)

28G. Foreign Currency Risks (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis:
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

55

88

126

101

(10)

(54)

(12)

(57)

22

(24)

(304)

(331)

–

–

(48)

(41)

–

(58)

(26)

(96)

Ah
 ypothetical 10% strengthening in the
exchange rate of the functional currency
$ against the US$ with all other variables
held constant would have an (adverse)/
favourable effect on pre-tax profit of
Ah
 ypothetical 10% strengthening in the
exchange rate of the functional currency
$ against the Sterling Pound with all other
variables held constant would have an
adverse effect on pre-tax profit of
Ah
 ypothetical 10% strengthening in the
exchange rate of the functional currency
$ against the Euro with all other variables
held constant would have an favourable/
(adverse) effect on pre-tax profit of
Ah
 ypothetical 10% strengthening in the
exchange rate of the functional currency $
against the Australian Dollar with all other
variables held constant would have an
adverse effect on pre-tax profit of
Ah
 ypothetical 10% strengthening in the
exchange rate of the functional currency
$ against the Malaysian Ringgit with all
other variables held constant would have
an adverse effect on pre-tax profit of
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28.

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Continued)

28G. Foreign Currency Risks (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis: (Continued)
The above table shows sensitivity to a hypothetical 10% variation in the functional currency against the
relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity rate used is the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. For similar rate weakening of the functional currency against the relevant foreign currencies, there
would be comparable impacts in the opposite direction on the profit or loss.
The hypothetical changes in exchange rates are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The sensitivity analysis is disclosed for each currency to which the entity has significant exposure at end of
reporting year. The analysis above has been carried out on the basis that there are no hedged transactions.
In management’s opinion, the above sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the foreign currency risks as
the historical exposure does not reflect the exposure in future.
29.

Commitments and related matters
Estimated amounts committed at the end of the reporting year for future capital expenditure but not
recognised in the financial statements are as follows:
Group

Contractual obligations to construct plant and equipment

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

7,263

6,852

The capital commitments above relate to development on the Group’s land in the People’s Republic of China
(Note 15). Arising from the land use rights acquired, the Group was originally scheduled to:
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(a)

Commence development on the land before 1 November 2011; and

(b)

Complete development on the land by 31 December 2012.
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29.

Commitments and related matters (Continued)
In March 2013, the Group obtained an extension from local authorities for the development on the land to
be undertaken between 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2014.
A further extension was obtained in March 2014 for development on the land to be undertaken between 1
June 2014 and 30 June 2015.
In the event that the Group is not able to complete development within the stipulated period, by 30 June
2015, approval for extension must be sought from the authorities six months in advance. Failure to do so
would result in a possible confiscation of the land. If this occurs, the potential amount at risk would include
the carrying value of the land amounting to $2,821,000 as at 31 December 2013 (Note 15).
As of the date of the financial statements, preparatory work has commenced for the development of the
land. In management’s judgement the potential impairment of the land is unlikely under the circumstances.
Included in Note 19 is a deposit of $1,654,000 (2012: $1,557,000) paid to a contractor to construct plant
and equipment on the land. As at the end of the reporting year 31 December 2013, the Group commenced
arbitration proceedings against the contractor for full recovery of the deposit less costs incurred to date by
the contractor. The arbitration is still in progress as at the date of these financial statements. No impairment
allowance has been made on the deposit as at 31 December 2013 as management has obtained an
independent legal opinion that the likelihood of full recovery is high as the contractor has yet to commence
work on the land. Management has also satisfied itself over the financial position of the contractor to meet
its obligations. The Group is planning to appoint a new contractor for the development.

30.

Operating Lease Payment Commitments
At the end of the reporting year the total of future minimum lease payment commitments under noncancellable operating leases are as follows:
Group

Not later than one year

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

284

477

238

228

973

1,229

906

850

2,559

2,638

2,559

2,638

609

652

249

259

Later than one year and not later than
five years
Later than five years
Rental expense for the year
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30.

Operating Lease Payment Commitments (Continued)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group and Company for certain of its warehouses,
office equipment and owned leasehold properties. The lease rental terms are negotiated for term of 1 to
22 years (2012: 1 to 22 years) and rentals are subject to an escalation clause but the amount of the rent
increase is not to exceed a certain percentage.

31.

Operating Lease Income Commitments
At end of the reporting year, the total of future minimum lease income commitments under non-cancellable
operating lease are as follows:
Group

Company

2013

2012

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Not later than one year
Rental income for the year

–

19

–

19

98

120

98

117

Operating lease income represents rentals receivables by the Group and Company for certain of its owned
leasehold properties. The lease rental terms are negotiated for term of two years (2012: two years) and
rentals are subject to an escalation clause but the amount of the rent increase is not to exceed a certain
percentage.
32.

Contingent Liabilities
Company

Bank guarantee in favour of subsidiaries (Note 3)

2013

2012

$’000

$’000

3,062

3,062

The Company has undertaken to provide continued financial support to certain of its subsidiaries which had
net capital deficit at the end of the reporting year.
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33.

Changes and Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
For the current reporting year the following new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards were
adopted. The new or revised standards did not require any modification of the measurement methods or
the presentation in the financial statements.
FRS No.

Title

FRS 1

Amendments to FRS 1 – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

FRS 1

Amendment to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Annual Improvements)

FRS 16

Amendment to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (Annual Improvements)

FRS 19

Employee Benefits (Revised)

FRS 32

Amendment to FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (Annual Improvements)

FRS 107

Amendments to FRS 32 and 107 titled Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (*)

FRS 113

Fair Value Measurements

INT FRS 120

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine (*)
(*) Not relevant to the entity.

34.

Future Changes in Financial Reporting Standards
The following new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards that have been issued will be effective
in future. The transfer to the new or revised standards from the effective dates is not expected to result
in material adjustments to the financial position, results of operations, or cash flows for the following year.
Effective date for
periods beginning
FRS No.

Title

on or after

FRS 27

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to)

1 Jul 2013

FRS 27

Separate Financial Statements (Revised)

1 Jan 2014

FRS 28

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Revised)

1 Jan 2014

FRS 36

Amendments to FRS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for

1 Jan 2014

Non-Financial Assets (relating to goodwill)
FRS 32

Amendments to FRS 39: Novation of Derivatives and

1 Jan 2014

Continuation of Hedge Accounting (*)
FRS 110

Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Jan 2014

FRS 111

Joint Arrangements

1 Jan 2014

FRS 112

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

1 Jan 2014

FRS 110

Amendments to FRS 110, FRS 111 and FRS 112

1 Jan 2014

INT FRS 121

Levies (*)

1 Jan 2014

(*) Not relevant to the entity.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION
Number of Shares :
Class of Shares
:
Voting Rights
:
		
Treasury Shares
:

214,202,036
Ordinary
On a show of hands : one vote for each member
On a poll
: one vote for each ordinary share
Nil

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS

NO. OF
SHAREHOLDERS

1 – 999
1,000 – 10,000
10,001 – 1,000,000
1,000,001 AND ABOVE
TOTAL

%

NO. OF
SHARES

%

15
829
317
13

1.28
70.61
27.00
1.11

4,169
2,654,832
26,572,297
184,970,738

0.00
1.24
12.41
86.35

1,174

100.00

214,202,036

100.00

NO. OF
SHARES

%

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

NO.

NAME

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

XU JIA ZU HOLDINGS PTE LTD
ERIC TANN KAH HUAT
MORGAN STANLEY ASIA (SINGAPORE) SECURITIES PTE LTD
GOH BOON KOK
TAN KIM TEE
HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD
BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD
DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
RAMESH S/O PRITAMDAS CHANDIRAMANI
CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD
KOH AH LECK
KOH HOO KWEE
TOK BOON SEONG
KOH GUAT YING BETTY
OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
ONG HOCK HAI
KOH CHOON LEANG
TAN THIAN TIN
YAP CHING SEOW
LAU CHAN @ LUA CHAN

165,137,500
3,383,000
2,370,000
2,150,000
1,840,000
1,700,000
1,632,000
1,518,238
1,142,000
1,050,000
1,038,000
1,006,000
1,004,000
999,000
940,048
903,000
861,000
781,000
615,000
600,000

77.09
1.58
1.11
1.00
0.86
0.79
0.76
0.71
0.53
0.49
0.48
0.47
0.47
0.47
0.44
0.42
0.40
0.36
0.29
0.28

TOTAL

190,669,786

89.00
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS PER REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Substantial shareholders as at 17 March 2014 as shown in the Register of Substantial Shareholders are:
Number of Shares
Name
Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd
Richard Koh Chye Heng
Koh Eddie

2

Indriati Khoe

3

1

Direct

Deemed

Interest

Interest

Total

%

165,137,500

–

165,137,500

77.09

–

165,137,500

165,137,500

77.09

–

165,137,500

165,137,500

77.09

–

165,137,500

165,137,500

77.09

(1)

Mr Richard Koh Chye Heng is deemed to have an interest in the shares held by Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd by virtue of his
holding more than 20% of the total issued shares in Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd. Mr Richard Chye Heng is holding 1 golden
share in Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd and by virtue of Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd’s Memorandum and Articles of Association,
he is deemed to have the ability to exercise dominant influence over the parent company as well as the listed company.

(2)

Mr Koh Eddie is deemed to have an interest in the shares held by Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd by virtue of his holding more
than 20% of the total issued shares in Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd.

(3)

Mdm Indriati Khoe is deemed to have an interest in the shares held by her spouse Mr Koh Eddie in Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte
Ltd.

PERCENTAGE OF SHAREHOLDING HELD BY THE PUBLIC
As at 17 March 2014, approximately 21.91% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company are held by the public.
Rule 723 of the Listing Manual Section B: Rules of Catalist issued by SGX-ST has therefore been complied with.
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APPENDIX
15 April 2014
This Appendix is circulated to the Shareholders of Pan Asian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2013 in respect of the proposed renewal of the
Shareholders’ Mandate (as defined in the Appendix) to be tabled at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on 30 April 2014 at 2.30 p.m. at 2 Tractor Road Singapore 627966.
If you are in any doubt as to the contents herein or as to any action you should take, you should consult your broker,
bank manager, accountant or other professional adviser immediately.
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited assumes no responsibilities for the accuracy of any of the
statements made, reports contained or opinions expressed in this Appendix.
The Notice of Annual General Meeting and Proxy Form are enclosed with the Annual Report.

PAN ASIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 197902790N)

APPENDIX IN RELATION TO
THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF THE SHAREHOLDERS’
MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSONS TRANSACTIONS
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In this appendix (“Appendix”), the following definitions apply throughout unless otherwise stated:
Companies within our Group
“Company”

:

Pan Asian Holdings Limited

“Group”

:

Pan Asian Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries

“Duvalco BV”

:

Duvalco BV, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Duvalco Valves

“Duvalco Tianjin”

:

Duvalco Valves (Tianjin) Co. Ltd, a 60% owned subsidiary of Duvalco Valves

“Duvalco Valves”

:

Duvalco Valves & Fittings Pte. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary company
of the Company

Other Companies, Corporations
or Organisations
“CDP”

:

The Central Depository (Pte) Limited

“Duvalco International” or

:

Duvalco International Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as Richards Valves Pte.
Ltd.)

“Licensor”
“Duvalco Wuxi”

:

Duvalco Valves (Wuxi) Co., Ltd (formerly known as Sinzhong Valves (Wuxi)
Co., Ltd.)

“SGX-ST” or “Stock Exchange”

:

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

“XJZ”

:

Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte. Ltd.

:

Companies Act (Chapter 50) of Singapore

General
“Act” or “Companies Act”

Annual General Meeting

“AGM”
“Associate”

:

Shall have the meaning ascribed to the term in the Catalist Rules

“Associated Company”

:

An “associated company” means a company in which at least 20% but not
more than 50% of its shares are held by the listed company or the group
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“Audit Committee”

:

The audit committee of the Company

“Board” or “Directors”

:

The directors of our Company as at the date of this Appendix, unless
otherwise stated
The SGX-ST Listing Manual Section B: Rules of Catalist, as amended, varied

“Catalist Rules”

or supplemented from time to time
“CEO”

:

Chief Executive Officer
The total sales value of the Duvalco Products sold by the Group to third

“Chargeable Consideration”

party customers
“Controlling Shareholder”

:

A person who holds directly or indirectly 15% or more of the nominal
amount of our Shares or the voting shares in a company, as the case may
be, or in fact exercises control over our Company or a company, as the
case may be

“Director”

A director of the Company for the time being

“Duvalco IP Rights”

All intellectual and/or industrial property rights of whatever nature and kind
anywhere in the world, whether registrable or otherwise, in relation to the
Duvalco Trademark and the Duvalco Products including without limitation
rights to the Duvalco Trademark, all rights related to the Duvalco Products,
confidential information regarding materials and specifications, patent
rights, copyright, design rights, trade names, trademarks, service marks
and other rights under general law associated therewith
Water and sanitary valves, fittings and ancillary products bearing the

“Duvalco Products”

Duvalco Trademark which is owned by the Licensor
The “Duvalco” name, brand, marks and any other symbols or logos

“Duvalco Trademark”

identified as Duvalco marks by the Licensor from time to time
“FY”

:

Financial year ended or, as the case may be, ending 31 December

“Independent Directors”

:

The non-executive independent Directors of our Company, as at the date
of this Appendix, unless otherwise stated

“Interested Person”

:

An “interested person” means a director, chief executive officer or
controlling shareholder of the listed company or an associate of such
director, chief executive officer or controlling shareholder
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“Interested Person Transaction”

:

Has the meaning ascribed thereto under Chapter 9 of the Catalist Rules

“Licence Agreement”

:

The licence agreement between the Company and the Licensor pertaining
to the grant of licence to use the Duvalco IP Rights and the payment of
the Royalty thereunder
The purchase of valves, wind-powered pump systems, accessories and

“Mandated Products”

other products from Duvalco Wuxi
The licence fees payable by the Company to the Licensor pursuant to the

“Royalty”

terms and conditions of the Licence Agreement
“Securities Account”

:

A securities account maintained by a Depositor with CDP but does not
include securities sub-account maintained with a Depository Agent

“Shareholders”

:

Registered holders of Shares except where the registered holder is CDP,
the term “Shareholders” shall, in relation to such Shares, means the
persons to whose securities accounts maintained with CDP are credited
with Shares
The general mandate approved by Shareholders for the Group to enter

“Shareholders’ Mandate”

into certain transactions with Duvalco Wuxi, being interested person
transactions, in compliance with Chapter 9 of the Catalist Rules
Ordinary shares in the capital of the Company

“Shares”
“Substantial Shareholder”

:

A person who holds directly or indirectly 5% or more of the total issued
share capital in our Company or in a company, as the case may be

“$” or “S$” and “cents”

:

Singapore dollars and cents, respectively

“%”

:

Per centum or percentage

The terms “Depositor”, “Depository Agent” and “Depository Register” shall have the meanings ascribed to them
respectively by Section 130A of the Act.
Words importing the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa, and words importing the
masculine gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa. References to
persons shall include corporations.
Reference to persons shall include corporations.
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Any reference in this Appendix to any enactment is a reference to that enactment for the time being amended or
re-enacted. Any word defined under the Companies Act, the Listing Manual or any modification thereof and used
in this Appendix shall have the same meaning assigned to it under the Companies Act, the Listing Manual or any
modification thereof, as the case may be.
Any reference to a time of day in this Appendix shall be a reference to Singapore time unless otherwise stated.
1.

INTRODUCTION
The purpose of this Appendix is to provide Shareholders with the relevant information relating to, and to
seek Shareholders’ approval at the AGM to renew the general mandate (“Shareholders’ Mandate”) that will
enable the Group to enter into transactions with the Interested Persons in compliance with Chapter 9 of
the Listing Manual.
Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual applies to transactions which a listed company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies propose to enter into with an interested person of the listed company. An “interested
person” is defined as a director, chief executive officer or controlling shareholder of the listed company or
an associate of such directors, chief executive officer or controlling shareholder.
Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual allows a listed company to seek a general mandate from its shareholders for
recurrent transactions of revenue or trading nature or those necessary for its day-to-day operations, which
may be carried out with the listed company’s “interested persons”.
Pursuant to Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual, the general mandate was approved at the Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 22 November 2013 to take effect until the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
to be held on 30 April 2014. Accordingly, the Directors propose that the Shareholders’ Mandate be renewed
at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 30 April 2014, to take effect until the next annual general
meeting of the Company.

2.

THE RENEWAL OF THE SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

2.1.

Classes of Interested Persons
The Shareholders’ Mandate will apply to Interested Person Transactions carried out with Duvalco International,
and Duvalco Wuxi and their Associates (the “Interested Persons” and each an “Interested Person”).
Transactions with the Interested Persons which do not fall within the ambit of the proposed Shareholders’
Mandate shall be subject to the relevant provisions of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual.
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2.2

Categories of Interested Person Transactions
The Interested Person Transactions to be covered by the Shareholders’ Mandate are as follows:–
a.

Payment of royalty to Duvalco International;

b.

Purchase of valves, wind-powered pump systems, accessories and other products from Duvalco Wuxi;
and

c.
2.3

Supply of raw materials to Duvalco Wuxi.

Rationale for and Benefits of the Shareholders’ Mandate
The transactions with Interested Persons are entered into or are to be entered into by our Group in its
ordinary course of business. They are recurring transactions which are likely to occur with some degree of
frequency and arise at any time and from time to time. The Directors are of the view that it will be beneficial
to our Group to be able to transact or continue to transact with the Interested Persons. It is in the interest
of our Group to have maximum access to potential suppliers of valves and related accessories in order to
procure the relevant valves and accessories which best meet the needs of our customers, having regard to,
amongst others, the quality, response time, reliability of supply and pricing. It is intended that the Interested
Persons Transactions shall continue in the future as long as they are in the interest of our Group and are
not prejudicial to our minority Shareholders.
The Shareholders’ Mandate and the renewal of the Shareholders’ Mandate on an annual basis will eliminate
the need to announce or convene separate general meetings on each occasion in order to seek Shareholders’
prior approval for the entry by our Group into such transactions. This will substantially reduce the expenses
associated with the convening of such general meetings from time to time, improve administrative efficacy,
and allow resources and time to be focused towards other corporate and business opportunities.
The Shareholders’ Mandate is intended to facilitate the Interested Persons Transactions, provided that
they are carried out on normal commercial terms and are not prejudicial to our Company and our minority
Shareholders.
Disclosure will be made in the annual report of the aggregate value of Interested Person Transactions
conducted pursuant to the Shareholders’ Mandate during the current financial year, and in the annual reports
for the subsequent financial years during which the Shareholders’ Mandate is renewed and in force.
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2.4

Review Procedures for Interested Person Transactions
To ensure that the transactions with the Interested Persons are undertaken on normal commercial terms and
are consistent with our Group’s usual business practices and policies, which are generally no more favourable
to the Interested Persons than those extended to unrelated third parties, our Group shall implement the
following procedures:
The following guidelines will be followed to assess whether the Interested Person Transactions with Duvalco
International and Duvalco Wuxi are carried out at arms’ length and on normal commercial terms:
(a)

Payment of royalty to Duvalco International
To ensure that the payment of the Royalty to the Licensor is effected in accordance with the terms
of the Licence Agreement, the payments will be properly documented and subject to the periodic
review of the Audit Committee and/or the Independent Directors. In conducting the review, the Audit
Committee will examine all information pertinent to the evaluation of the amounts paid or payable to
the Licensor, including but not limited to the Group’s relevant revenue records and monthly reports
of Chargeable Consideration in respect of the Duvalco Products. Any member of the Audit Committee
who is deemed interested in any such interested person transactions, shall abstain from reviewing,
recommending and/or approving the payments.

(b)

Supply of raw materials to Duvalco Wuxi
As the raw materials supplied to Duvalco Wuxi will be used to manufacture products to be sold to
the Group, the price at which such raw materials will be sold by the Group to Duvalco Wuxi shall be
based on a fixed 3% mark-up (the “Mark-Up”) on the price at which the Group purchased the raw
materials from third party suppliers (“Cost”).

(c)

Purchase of Mandated Products from Duvalco Wuxi
The price at which the Mandated Products are to be purchased by the Group from Duvalco Wuxi shall
be the price comprising the Cost and Mark-Up, the operating costs of Duvalco Wuxi and the rental
for the factory premises where the products are manufactured. In this regard:
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Operating costs
Duvalco Wuxi will provide to the Group, on a monthly basis, supporting documentary evidence to show
the operating costs of Duvalco Wuxi. Such operating costs shall include utility charges, manpower
costs, direct overheads and administrative expenses. The Group’s finance department shall review
and verify the operating costs on a monthly basis and present them to the Audit Committee for review
on a half-yearly basis.
For the avoidance of doubt, the direct overheads will comprise mainly direct labour costs and will not
include property depreciation or rental-related costs.
In addition, on a half-yearly basis, the Group’s Finance Department shall obtain quotations or market
prices from at least two other unrelated third party manufacturers (where possible or available) in
respect of the supply of substantially similar types of products, and submit the same to the Audit
Committee for its review to ensure that the prices charged by Duvalco Wuxi shall not be less
favourable than the most competitive prices offered by unrelated third party manufacturers.
In the event that a member of the Audit Committee is interested in the transactions with Duvalco
Wuxi, he will abstain from participating in the aforesaid reviews.
Rental
The rental for the factory premises, which is owned by Duvalco Wuxi, shall be fixed at RMB1.2
million per year for a period of three years, which commensurate with the prevailing market rates,
based on a valuation report by an independent valuer. After the initial period of three years, in order
to determine the rental for the factory premises, the Company shall adopt measures such as making
relevant inquiries with landlords of similar properties and obtaining necessary reports or reviews
published by property agents (including an independent valuation report by a property valuer, where
considered appropriate). Such information shall be submitted to the Audit Committee for its review
and any revised rental rate shall be subject to the approval of the Audit Committee.
In the event that a member of the Audit Committee is interested in the transactions with Duvalco
Wuxi, he will abstain from participating in the aforesaid review and approval.
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General administration procedures for all Interested Person Transactions
The Group has also implemented the following procedures for the identification of Interested Persons and
the recording of Interested Person Transactions:–
i.

The Group Financial Controller will maintain a list of the Group’s Directors, Substantial Shareholders
and Controlling Shareholder and their respective Associates (which is to be updated immediately if
there are any changes), and disclose the list to relevant key personnel of each subsidiary to enable
identification of Interested Persons. The master list of Interested Persons which is maintained shall
be reviewed at least on a semi-annual basis;

ii.

The Group Financial Controller will also obtain signed letters of confirmation from key management
personnel, the Directors, Substantial Shareholders and Controlling Shareholder of the Group and on
a semi-annual basis as to their interests as well as their Associates’ interests in any transaction with
our Group;

iii.

The Group Financial Controller will maintain a register of transactions carried out with Interested
Persons (recording the basis, including the quotations obtained to support such basis, on which they
are entered into) (the “Interested Person Transactions Register”);

iv.

The Audit Committee will review the letters of confirmation from key management personnel,
Substantial Shareholders and the Directors of our Group, and all interested person transactions at
least on a semi-annual basis and the outcome of such review shall be documented and filed in the
Interested Person Transactions Register; and

v.

The Board would also be responsible for obtaining Shareholders’ approval for recurring interested
persons transactions which are carried out in the normal course of business.

In addition, our Audit Committee will include the review of Interested Person Transactions as part of its
standard procedures while examining the adequacy of its internal controls. Our Board will also ensure that all
disclosures, approvals and other requirements on Interested Person Transactions, including those required
by prevailing legislation, the Listing Manual and accounting standards, are complied with.
Our Audit Committee shall review from time to time such guidelines and procedures to determine if they
are adequate and/or commercially practicable in ensuring that transactions between our Group and our
Interested Persons are conducted on normal commercial terms. Further, if during these periodic reviews
by our Audit Committee, our Audit Committee is of the view that the guidelines and procedures as stated
above are inappropriate or are not sufficient to ensure that Interested Person Transactions will be on normal
commercial terms which will not be prejudicial to our Company and our minority Shareholders, our Company
will (pursuant to Rule 920(1)(b)(iv) and (vii) of the Listing Manual) revert to Shareholders for a fresh mandate
based on new guidelines and procedures for transactions with Interested Persons.
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Review procedures for future Interested Person Transactions other than those covered by Shareholders’
Mandate
Our Audit Committee will review and approve all interested person transactions as defined by the Listing
Manual which are not covered by the Shareholders’ Mandate to ensure that such transactions are on normal
commercial terms and arms’ length basis, that is, the transactions are transacted on terms and prices
not more favourable to the interested persons than if they were transacted with a third party and are not
prejudicial to the interests of our Shareholders in any way.
During its periodic review or such other review deemed necessary by it, our Audit Committee will carry out a
review of records of all such interested person transactions to ensure that they are carried out in accordance
with the following internal control procedures:–
i.

Interested person transactions above $100,000 are to be approved by a Director who shall not be
an interested person in respect of the particular transaction. Interested person transactions below
$100,000 do not require such approval. Any sale or purchase contracts to be made with an interested
person shall not be approved unless the pricing is:–
(a)

determined in accordance with our usual business practices and policies;

(b)

consistent with the usual margin given or price received by us for the same or substantially
similar type of transactions between us and unrelated parties; and

(c)

the terms are no more favourable to the interested person than those extended to or received
from unrelated parties.

For the purposes above, contracts for the same or substantially similar type of transactions entered
into between us and unrelated third parties, if any, will be used as a basis for comparison to determine
whether the price and terms offered to or received from the interested person are no more favourable
than those extended to unrelated parties.
ii.

In addition, we shall monitor interested person transactions entered into by us and categorise these
transactions as follows:–
(a)

a Category 1 interested person transaction is one where the value thereof is in excess of 3%
of the NTA of our Group; and

(b)

a Category 2 interested person transaction is one where the value thereof is below or equal
to 3% of the NTA of our Group.
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Category 1 interested person transactions must be approved by our Audit Committee prior to entry whereas
Category 2 interested person transactions need not be approved by our Audit Committee prior to entry but
shall be reviewed on a semi-annual basis by our Audit Committee.
We will prepare relevant information to assist our Audit Committee in its review.
Before any agreement or arrangement that is not in the ordinary course of business of our Group is
transacted, prior approval must be obtained from our Audit Committee. In the event that a member of our
Audit Committee is interested in any of the interested person transactions, he will abstain from reviewing that
particular transaction. Any decision to proceed with such an agreement or arrangement would be recorded
for review by our Audit Committee.
Our Audit Committee will also review all interested person transactions to ensure that the prevailing rules
and regulations of the SGX-ST (in particular, Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual) are complied with.
We will also comply with the provisions in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual in respect of all future interested
person transactions, and if required under the Listing Manual or the Act, we will seek our Shareholders’
approval (where necessary) for such transactions.
Our Audit Committee is of the view that the review procedures and systematic monitoring mechanism of
all interested person transactions as mentioned above are adequate in ensuring that such transactions will
be on normal commercial terms and will not be prejudicial to the interests of our Shareholders in any way.
3.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
The details of the Directors’ and Substantial Shareholders’ interests in the Shares as at the Latest Practicable
Date are set out below:–
Direct Interest
No. of Shares
Koh Eddie

%

1

Richard Koh Chye Heng
Indriati Khoe

2

3

Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte. Ltd.
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Deemed Interest

165,137,500

No. of Shares

%

165,137,500

77.09

165,137,500

77.09

165,137,500

77.09

77.09

1.

Mr. Koh Eddie holds 50% interest in Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd.

2.

Mr. Richard Koh Chye Heng holds 50% and 1 golden share in Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd and by virtue of Xu Jia Zu
Holdings Pte Ltd’s Memorandum & Articles of Association, he is deemed to have the ability to exercise dominant
influence over the parent company as well as the listed company.

3.

Mdm Indriati Khoe is deemed to have an interest held by her spouse Mr. Koh Eddie in Xu Jia Zu Holdings Pte Ltd.
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4.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S STATEMENT
The Audit Committee confirms that:
a.

the methods or procedures for determining the transaction prices under the Shareholders’ Mandate
have not changed since the EGM held on 22 November 2013; and

b.

the methods or procedures referred to as per above are sufficient to ensure that the transactions will
be carried out on normal commercial terms and will not be prejudicial to the interests of the Company
and its minority Shareholders.

If during the periodic reviews by the Audit Committee, it is of the view that the established review
procedures are no longer appropriate or adequate to ensure that the transactions with Interested Persons
will be transacted on normal commercial terms and on terms or conditions that would not be prejudicial
to the interests of the Company and minority Shareholders, the Company will seek a fresh mandate from
Shareholders based on new review procedures.
5.

DIRECTORS’ RECOMMENDATION
Having fully considered the rationale set out in this Appendix, the Directors believe that the renewal of the
Shareholders’ Mandate is in the interest of the Company and recommend that Shareholders vote in favour of
the Interested Person Transaction Resolution as set out in the Notice of AGM enclosed in the Annual Return.

6.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Your approval for the proposed renewal of the Shareholders’ Mandate is sought at the AGM.
The resolution relating to the renewal of the Shareholders’ Mandate is contained in the Notice of AGM as
Ordinary Resolution 7.

7.

ACTION TO BE TAKEN BY SHAREHOLDERS
If a Shareholder is unable to attend the AGM and wishes to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his behalf,
he should complete, sign and return the attached Proxy Form in accordance with the instructions printed
thereon as soon as possible and, in any event, so as to reach the registered office of the Company at
2 Tractor Road Singapore 627966 not later than 48 hours before the time set for the Annual General Meeting.
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8.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given
in this Appendix and confirm after making all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and
belief, this Appendix constitutes full and true disclosure of all material facts about the proposed transaction
and the Shareholders’ Mandate contemplated in this Appendix, the Company and its subsidiaries, and the
Directors are not aware of any facts the omission of which would make any statement in this Appendix
misleading. Where information in this Appendix has been extracted from published or otherwise publicly
available sources or obtained from a named source, the sole responsibility of the Directors has been to ensure
that such information has been accurately and correctly extracted from those sources and/or reproduced in
this Appendix in its proper form and context.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 2 Tractor Road,
Singapore 627966 on Wednesday, 30 April 2014 at 2.30 p.m. to transact the following business:–

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2013 together with the Auditor’s Report thereon.

2.

(Resolution 1)

To re-elect Mr Wu Yu Liang, who is retiring pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association.
(Resolution 2)
Mr Wu Yu Liang will, upon re-election as Director of the Company, remain as Chairman of the Nominating
Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and will be considered
independent for the purpose of Rule 704(7) of the listing manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited Section B: Rules of Catalist (“the Catalist Rules”). Save as disclosed herein, Mr Wu does not have any
relationship including immediate family relationship with the Directors, the Company or its 10% shareholders
(as defined in the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 (the “Code”)). The detailed information of Mr Wu
can be found under the section entitled Board of Directors in page 9 of the Annual Report.

3.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution:–

(Resolution 3)

“That pursuant to Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, Mr Goh Boon Kok be and is hereby reappointed as a Director of the Company to hold office until the next Annual general Meeting.”
Mr Goh Boon Kok will, upon re-appointment as Director of the Company, remain as Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee and will be
considered independent for the purpose of Rule 704(7) of the Catalist Rules. Save as disclosed herein, Mr Goh
does not have any relationship including immediate family relationship with the Directors, the Company or
its 10% shareholders (as defined in the Code). The detailed information of Mr Goh can be found under the
section entitled Board of Directors in page 9 of the Annual Report.
4.

To approve Directors’ fees of S$131,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2014 to be paid half yearly
in arrears (2013: S$126,000).

5.

(Resolution 4)

To re-appoint RSM Chio Lim LLP as auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

(Resolution 5)
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SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolutions with or without any modifications:–

6.

Authority to allot and issue shares and convertible securities
(a)

(Resolution 6)

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, and the Catalist Rules, authority be and
is hereby given to the Directors of the Company at any time to such persons and upon such terms and
for such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit, to:
(i)
(ii)

issue shares in the capital of the Company whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise;
make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or would
require shares to be issued or other transferable rights to subscribe for or purchase shares
including but not limited to the creation and issue of warrants, debentures or other instruments
convertible into shares;

(iii)

issue additional Instruments arising from adjustments made to the number of Instruments
previously issued in the event of rights, bonus or capitalisation issues; and

(b)

(notwithstanding the authority conferred by the shareholders may have ceased to be in force) issue
shares in pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors while the authority was in
force,

provided always that
(i)

the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution (including shares to be issued
in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this resolution) does not exceed 100% of
the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company, of which the aggregate
number of shares (including shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant
to this resolution) to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Company does
not exceed 50% of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company. Unless
prior shareholder approval is required under the Catalist Rules, an issue of treasury shares will not
require further shareholder approval, and will not be included in the aforementioned limits.
For the purpose of this resolution, the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares is based
on the Company’s total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares at the time this resolution
is passed, after adjusting for;
a)
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(ii)

b)

new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards outstanding or
subsisting at the time this resolution is passed provided the options or awards were granted in
compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8 of the Catalist Rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited, and

c)

any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of the Company’s shares, and

such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting, continue in force
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting or the date by which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier.
(See Explanatory Note 1)

7.

Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Interested Person Transactions

(Resolution 7)

That approval be and is hereby given for the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Catalist Rules for the Company,
its subsidiaries and target associated companies (if any) or any of them to enter into any of the transactions
falling within the types of Interested Person Transactions, particulars of which are set out in the Appendix
to the Annual Report to shareholders dated 15 April 2014 (the “Appendix”) with the interested persons
described in the Appendix, provided that such transactions are transacted on normal commercial terms and
will not be prejudicial to the interests of the Company and the minority shareholders of the Company and in
accordance with the guidelines and procedures for Interested Person Transactions as set out in the Appendix
and that such approval (the “Shareholders’ Mandate”) shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company in
general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;
and the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts and things
(including executing all such documents as may be required) as they may consider expedient or necessary
to give effect to the Shareholders’ Mandate.
(See Explanatory Note 2)
8.

To transact any other ordinary business which may properly be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Low Mei Wan
Teo Kok Meng
Company Secretaries
Singapore
15 April 2014
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Explanatory Notes:
1.

The Ordinary Resolution proposed in item no. 6, if passed, will empower the Directors, from the date of this Annual
General Meeting until the next Annual General Meeting, to allot and issue new shares and/or convertible securities in
the Company including a rights or bonus issue without seeking further approval from shareholders in general meeting for
such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the best interests of the Company. The maximum number of shares
which the Directors may issue pursuant to this Resolution shall not exceed the quantum set out in the Resolution.

2.

The Ordinary Resolution proposed in item no. 7 is to renew the Shareholders’ Mandate for transactions with interested
persons and if passed, will empower the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies or any of them to enter into
certain interested person transactions with persons who are considered “interested persons” as defined in Chapter 9 of
the Catalist Rules.

Notes:
1.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies
to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company and where there are two proxies, the
number of shares to be represented by each proxy must be stated.

2.

The instrument or form appointing a proxy or proxies, duly executed, must be deposited at the Company’s registered
office at 2 Tractor Road, Singapore 627966 not later than 48 hours before the time for holding of the above Annual General
Meeting.
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PROXY FORM
*I/We

(Name)

of

(Address)

being a member/members of Pan Asian Holdings Limited (the “Company”), hereby appoint

Name

Address

NRIC/Passport No.

Proportion of
shareholdings (%)

(a)
and/or (delete as appropriate)
(b)
as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll, at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held at 2 Tractor Road, Singapore 627966 on Wednesday, 30 April 2014 at 2.30 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.
Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be cast for or against the Resolutions to be
proposed at the Meeting as indicated hereunder. In the absence of specific directions, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from
voting as he/they may think fit, as he/they will on any other matter arising at the Meeting).
No.

Resolutions

For

1.

Directors’ Report and financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2013

2.

Re-election of Mr Wu Yu Liang as Director

3.

Re-appointment of Mr Goh Boon Kok as Director

4.

Approval of Directors’ Fees for the financial year ending 31 December 2014

5.

Re-appointment of RSM Chio Lim LLP as Auditors

6.

Approval for Directors to issue shares and/or convertible securities

7.

Renewal of shareholders’ mandate for transactions with interested persons of
the Company

Dated this

day of

2014
Total number of shares in:

Signature(s) of individual Shareholder/
Common Seal of Corporate Shareholders
IMPORTANT
Please read notes overleaf

Against

a)

CDP Register

b)

Register of Members

No. of shares

Notes:
1.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies
to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company and where there is more than one proxy, the
number of Shares to be represented by each proxy must be stated.

2.

This Proxy Form must be signed by the appointor or his/her duly authorised attorney or, if the appointor is a body corporate,
signed by a duly authorised officer or his attorney and affixed with its common seal thereto.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy [together with the power of attorney (if any) under which it is signed, or a certified copy thereof],
must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at 2 Tractor Road, Singapore 627966 not less than 48 hours before the time
fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting.

4.

Please insert the total number of Shares held by you. If you have Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register (as
defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore), you should insert that number of Shares registered in
your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the number of Shares. If you have Shares entered against your name in
the Depository Register and Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number
of Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of Members. If no
number is inserted, the instruments appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the Shares held by you.

5.

The Company shall be entitled to reject this instrument of proxy if it is incomplete, not properly completed or illegible or where the
true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in this instrument of proxy.
In addition, in case of members whose Shares are deposited with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”), the Company may
reject any instrument of proxy lodged if such member is not shown to have Shares entered against his name in the Depository
Register 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting as certified by CDP to the Company.
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This Annual Report has been prepared by the Company and its contents have been reviewed by the Company’s Sponsor, CNP Compliance Pte Ltd for compliance with the relevant rules
of the SGX-ST. CNP Compliance Pte Ltd has not independently veriﬁed the contents of this Annual Report. This Annual Report has not been examined or approved by the SGX-ST and the
SGX-ST assumes no responsibility for the contents of this Annual Report, including the correctness of any of the statements or opinions made or reports contained in this Annual Report.
The contact person for the Sponsor is Mr. Thomas Lam, CNP Compliance Pte Ltd at 36 Carpenter Street, Singapore 059915, Telephone (65) 6349 8671.

